Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 7 December 2017

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
29 November 2017

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4.

Second Quarter Performance, Finance and Procurement Review 2017/18 (Pages 9
- 60)

5.

Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2021/22 (Pages 61 - 116)

6.

Empty Property Strategy (Pages 117 - 148)

7.

Housing Revenue Account - Long-term Vacant Properties (Pages 149 - 160)

PART 2
8.

To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

9.

To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 161 - 162)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

10.

Glossop Halls Project Update (Pages 163 - 170)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

11.

Housing Gas Servicing and Maintenance Contract Award (Pages 171 - 188)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

12.

Radon Remediation in HRA Properties (Pages 189 - 200)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

13.

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2017/18 - Appendix
D (Pages 201 - 202)
(Paragraph 7 - Any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of The Executive
Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillor J McCabe

Councillor T Kemp (Vice-Chair)
Councillor E Thrane

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
THE EXECUTIVE
Meeting:

Thursday, 12 October 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor T Ashton (Chair)
Councillors T Kemp, J McCabe and E Thrane
Councillor A. McKeown was also in attendance.

18/21

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)
Councillor McCabe declared an other interest – Council’s representative to
Tameside & Glossop Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust.

18/22

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 August 2017 be approved.

18/23

POLICY ON ENFORCEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CRIMES
(Agenda Item 4)
The report presented a revised policy that aimed to further improve the
Council’s approach to tackling environmental crimes such as littering, flytipping and dog fouling. The report was considered by the Community
Select Committee on 4 October 2017.
Options considered:
1. To approve the policy on environmental enforcement and the revised
approach to enforcement activity described therein (recommended).
2. Not to approve the policy on environmental enforcement and to continue
with the existing approach (not recommended).
RESOLVED:

18/24

1.

That the content of the report be noted.

2.

That the proposed Policy on the Enforcement of
Environmental Crimes be approved.

GLOSSOP CREATIVE INDUSTRIES ASSESSMENT
(Agenda Item 5)
This report provided a brief summary of the Glossop Creative Industries
Assessment Report produced for the Council by Tom Fleming Creative
Consultancy. The report was
considered
Page
3 by the Economy and Growth

The Executive
Thursday, 12 October 2017

Select Committee on 28 September 2017 which expressed concerns around
the level of resources allocated to the project and the input required of
volunteers. It was also considered beneficial for there to be increased
involvement of local councillors. It was suggested that it would be useful to
provide an update on the project to the Economy and Growth Select
Committee early in 2018.
Options considered:
1. That members comment on and support the broad direction of the
proposals in the Glossop Creative Industries Assessment Report.
(Recommended).
2. That members do not support further action to refine, develop and
implement the findings of the Glossop Creative Industries Assessment
Report (Not recommended).
RESOLVED:

That, subject to the above comments, the report be received.
18/25

SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND ADULTS AT RISK OF ABUSE AND
NEGLECT
(Agenda Item 6)
The report provided an annual update to members on the Council’s action to
meet its safeguarding duties. The report was considered by the Corporate
Select Committee on 9 October 2017.
Options considered:
There were no options available.
RESOLVED:

18/26

That the actions taken by the Council in response to its
safeguarding duties be noted.

GROWTH STRATEGY
(Agenda Item 7)
The purpose of the report was to present the revised Growth Strategy to the
Executive, following consultation and approval from the Economy and
Growth Select Committee.
Options considered:
1.

Approve the Growth Strategy: The Growth Strategy had been
conceived as the implementation plan for the Local Plan that was
adopted in April 2016. Having an implementation plan in place would
help in demonstrating the Council’s commitment to delivering the
Local Plan and maintaining a 5 year supply. The strategy also helped
to maximise the benefits of Growth by providing a clear plan to
achieving them. Recommended.

Page 4

The Executive
Thursday, 12 October 2017

2.

Do not approve the Growth Strategy: This was not considered the
preferred option because the growth strategy helped to align the
actions and resources to achieve a shared vision of delivering the
Local Plan. Not having a delivery mechanism in the form of the
Growth Strategy in place could be a risk to the five year housing
supply and losing out on the community benefits in the form of
Community Infrastructure Levy, Council tax, New Homes Bonus and
Business rates. The other key purpose of the strategy was to
demonstrate strategic positioning of the economic strength of the
region. This was anticipated to provide confidence and certainty of
strategic fit of all projects to prospective investor and funders. Not
having the strategy in place would reduce the region’s chances of
attracting investment. Not recommended.

RESOLVED:

18/27

That the revised version of the Strategy be noted and
approved for online publication.

BUSINESS RATES REVALUATION AND LOCAL DISCRETIONARY RATE
RELIEF SCHEME
(Agenda Item 8)
The purpose of the report was to provide an overview of the updated and
new business rate reliefs that had been recently announced by central
government, and sought approval the Council’s local discretionary business
rate relief policy. The report was considered by the Corporate Select
Committee on 9 October 2017.
Options considered:
1.

Option 1 – Not Recommended
Do not approve the Local Discretionary Rate Relief Policy and
updated Business Rate Relief Policy

2.

Option 2 – Recommended
Approve the Local Discretionary Rate Relief Policy and updated
Business Rate Relief Policy (subject to consultation)

RESOLVED:

18/28

1.

That the implications of the business rates
revaluation on the local businesses in High Peak,
including the new reliefs that have been implemented
by central government, be noted.

2.

That the principles and criteria for the local
discretionary rate relief scheme taking into account
comments from Corporate Select Committee (subject
to consultation with preceptors) be approved.

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES
(Agenda Item 9)
Alison Lewin (Deputy Director of Transformation Tameside and Glossop
CCG) and Dr Alan Dow (Chairman of Tameside and Glossop CCG)
attended the Community Select
Committee
on 4 October 2017 to provide an
Page
5

The Executive
Thursday, 12 October 2017

update on the review of Intermediate Care provision in Tameside and
Glossop. There was a presentation on the options for the delivery of bed
based intermediate care. Option 2: all bed-based intermediate care in a
single location at the Stamford Unit was the preferred option for Tameside
and Glossop CCG.
Options considered:
Councillors considered the three options that had been put forward for the
purposes of consultation.
RESOLVED:

That the relevant minute of the Community Select Committee meeting of 4
October be sent to the Tameside and Glossop CCG as the Council’s
response to the consultation at this stage.
18/29

TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 10)
RESOLVED:
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

18/30

TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 11)
RESOLVED:
That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 3 August
2017 be approved.

18/31

DISPOSAL OF EXTENDED LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN THE FORMER
SWINESHAW WATER TREATMENT WORKS AT BLACKSHAW ROAD/
BUTE STREET, GLOSSOP
(Agenda Item 12)
The Executive approved a report which considered the sale of the freehold
interest in the former water treatment works at Blackshaw Road / Bute
Street, Glossop.

18/32

CONTRACT AWARD
FRAMEWORK
(Agenda Item 13)

-

STRUCTURAL

ENGINEERING

SERVICES

The Executive approved a report that considered the appointment of
Structural Engineers to a framework for design and advice services to the
Pageof 6a tender exercise.
Council following the completion

The Executive
Thursday, 12 October 2017

18/33

SALE OF FREEHOLD INTEREST IN LAND AT WOODSMILL, GLOSSOP
(Agenda Item 14)
The Executive approved a report that considered the sale of a reversionary
freehold interest in land in the Woods Mill area of Glossop.

The meeting concluded at 6.58 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
7th December 2017
TITLE:

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement &
Performance Review 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene - Finance
Vanessa Higgins - Performance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A - 2017/18 – Second Quarter Financial Report
 Appendix B - 2017/18 – Second Quarter Procurement Report
 Appendix C - (2017/18 – Second Quarter Performance Report
 Appendix D - Application for write off of non-recoverable debts
(Exempt)
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September 2017
(“Second Quarter 2017/18”)

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that The Executive:



Note the Second Quarter 2017/18 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report; and
Approve the write-off of debts as set out in Appendix D.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after
considering service activity up to the end of the second quarter (i.e. 30th
September 2017).

Page 9

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:
Headline

Reference

Finance

The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 The General Fund budget for 2016/17 is forecast to be underspent
by £1,079,710 at the Quarter 2 stage.
 The underspend is required to be ring-fenced to support an
additional drawdown against reserves in 2018/19 to account for the
impact of business rates appeals and reliefs
Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target of £310,000 for 2017/18 is projected to
be achieved at the second quarter stage – with £194,150 achieved
to date. However, this is dependent on the progression of key
efficiency programmes.
Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account is forecast to be in surplus by
£581,630 - £460,000 of which contributes to ongoing Financial
Improvement Plan savings.
Capital Programme
 The Capital Programme budget for 2017/18 is £6.1m including the
carry forward of capital underspends from 2016/17. The projected
outturn is £4.7m which represents an underspend of £1.4m relating
to the reprofiling of asset management plan schemes
 The HRA Capital Programme for 2017/18 is £4.2 million, with spend
forecast to be £55,000 underspent against budget at Quarter 2.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30th September 2017 totalled £18.2
million.
 Council borrowing at 30th September 2017 totalled £72.2 million.
 The Council’s net interest receipts general fund budget is projected
to be underspent by £8,260, with a £39,330 underspend on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 54.7% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2017,
compared to 57.5% for the same period last year.
 58.6% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 2017
compared with 58.5% for the same period last year (2017/18
distorted by an upfront payment form a large hereditament payer)
 At the end of Quarter 2 the value of sundry debt over 60 days old
was £267,417 which compares to £266,876 at 30th September 2016

Appendix A

Procurement

The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 48 procurement activities were completed (3 high value greater than
£172,000 – including HRA boiler replacements and Pavilion Gardens
food supplies)
 The procurement forward plan includes 75 procurement activities
scheduled for 2017/18 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 30th September 2017, 71% of procurement activity
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its
invoices within 30 days
The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter are:

Appendix B

Subject

Performance

Page 10

Appendix C





63% of the key performance indicators are on track
Of the 19 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, one is rated
‘amber’, one is awaiting a decision, the remainder being classified as
‘Green’; and
The Council received 94 complaints, 74 comments and 66
compliments in the Second Quarter. Repeat complaints and
response times both on track

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the
subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

Page 11

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Buxton Town Hall

Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 12

APPENDIX A

2017/18
Second Quarter
Financial
Review

Page 13

1

Background and Introduction

1.1

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the
second such report for 2017/18.

1.2

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2017/18 with particular
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific
considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Pavilion Gardens (Section 3) – highlights the financial performance of this
key Council trading activity.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the performance of
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste services.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 5) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.



Housing Revenue Account (Section 6) – highlights the budgetary position in
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.



General Fund Capital Programme (Section 7 ) – provides an update to
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.



HRA Capital Programme (Section 8 ) – provides an update to Members on
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.



Treasury Management (Section 9) – sets out the key statistics in terms of
investments and borrowings.



Revenue Collection (Section 10) – considers progress-to-date in collecting
the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 14

2.

General Fund Revenue Account

2.1

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General Fund
Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service

2017/18 Budget

Projected
Outturn
2017/18

£

£

Variance

67,020
10,240
609,790
91,980
201,830
1,197,310
(169,590)
(377,890)
(85,730)
148,890
30,510
96,470
(336,520)
197,530
263,640
212,530
21,750
137,360
(146,800)
6,356,750
1,780,050
(9,170)
498,000
(519,780)
(1,147,730)
(3,080)
-

62,000
10,240
609,790
76,980
187,630
1,328,570
(190,590)
(396,040)
(112,720)
123,890
26,510
36,470
(337,320)
234,830
250,890
204,530
23,580
127,360
(148,800)
6,082,050
1,786,000
9,040
445,320
(516,950)
(1,095,030)
(7,270)
-

£
(5,020)
(15,000)
(14,200)
131,260
(21,000)
(18,150)
(26,990)
(25,000)
(4,000)
(60,000)
(800)
37,300
(12,750)
(8,000)
1,830
(10,000)
(2,000)
(274,700)
5,950
18,210
(52,680)
2,830
52,700
(4,190)
-

9,125,360

8,820,960

(304,400)

Net Interest

1,360,510
10,485,870

1,352,250
10,173,210

(8,260)
(312,660)

Funding : external
: reserves - contribution/(use)

(9,932,300)
(553,570)

(10,656,800)
(596,120)

(724,500)
(42,550)

-

(1,079,710)

(1,079,710)

Alliance Management Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance, Income and Procurement
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Visitor Services
Environmental Health
Housing **
Net Total of Services

Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for Pavilion Gardens staff which for operational
reasons is included within Visitor Services). Staff budgets/actuals are to be redistributed to Services by the end of the year
** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

Page 15

2.2

A revenue budget of £10,485,870 was set for 2017/18. The table above shows
how this budget has been allocated to services and also reflects:





The combination of the former Chief Executive and Executive Director
services under the Alliance Management Team heading.
The creation of a Corporate Finance service to record those budgets
formerly included within Finance, Income and Procurement but not under
the direct control of that service – for example the efficiency programme
targets.
That Corporate Finance currently includes budgeted staff costs, though the
intention is that they will be allocated to services during the course of the
year.

2.3

The Quarter Two projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for
2017/18 is £9,406,160. This represents a projected surplus for the year of
£1,079,710.

2.4

There are two services with a projected significant overspend:




2.5

Property (£131,260 overspend); The national revaluation of Non-Domestic
Rateable Values saw the Authority’s Business Rates bill increase by £30,000.
A review of the rent paid by the Authority for the Waterswallows depot has
resulted in an in-year increase of £10,000 plus a backdated charge of the
same amount. Income from Industrial Units is depressed by £15,000 owing to
tenant vacancies. The most significant pressure on the service budgets is a
projected £60,000 overspend on repairs. However owing to the nature of the
repairs it is proposed that the Authority’s earmarked Health and Safety reserve
is used to meet the additional repairs costs.
Visitor (£52,700 overspend); Stall vacancies at Glossop Market Arcade are
expected to result in a £9,000 overspend. As reported at Section 3 below,
closure of the Octagon is adversely affecting room hire income at Pavilion
Gardens resulting in a projected £44,000 overspend.

There are three services with a projected significant underspend;





Electoral Services (£60,000 underspend): The service budgets to make an
annual contribution in to an earmarked reserve in order to smooth the costs of
the council’s elections over the term of the administration. The budgeted
underspend to fund this contribution for 2017/18 is £40,000. A further £20,000
underspend is anticipated as a result of the costs relating to individual elector
registration currently being below the level of funding received from central
government in the form of Section 31 grant.
Corporate Finance (£274,700 underspend): Expenditure against the staffing
budget is likely to give rise to an underspend in the region of £250,000. While
in part this arises from decisions taken during the evolving service review
process, there is also an element arising out of vacancies and turnover within
the current establishment. Eventually it is likely that some of this saving will
be taken to the benefit of the authority’s efficiency programme. There is also a
£27,000 underspend expected against the vehicle leasing budget.

Page 16



Leisure Services (£52,680 underspend): Owing to lower than expected costs
on repairs and a pension reimbursement against the contract fee, a £34,000
underspend is anticipated against the leisure centre budgets. Delay in
finalising the leisure development strategy has caused slippage in certain
projects resulting in a £8,700 underspend for the year against the leisure and
games budget. The Council’s leisure development function co-ordinates a
number of projects that are part funded by third party contributions. It is
anticipated that these contributions will outweigh spend in 17/18 by £10,000
which will be transferred to an earmarked reserve at the year end.

2.6

There is a predicted £8,260 underspend on net interest costs which is detailed in
section 9.

2.7

The level of funding anticipated for the year is above that budgeted due to the
following:
External Funding:
Funding from local taxpayers and government grants was budgeted at £9,932,300
for 2017/18. The amount now anticipated to be credited to the year is £724,500
greater:
Business Rates Retention (£724,500):
An increase of £130,520 in the level of retained business rates is anticipated
owing to increases in business rates income. This was not assumed in the
budget because of uncertainties surrounding the 2017 revaluation and
appeals provision.
In addition to this, an increase of £250,420 is anticipated resulting from S31
grants to fund the new reliefs for Local Discretionary Relief, Supporting Small
Businesses and Pub Relief. These grants are credited to the General Fund in
the year but the associated reliefs have the opposite effect of increasing the
Collection Fund deficit to be distributed in the following year.
The levy payable, on business rates retention, to the pool is expected to be
reduced by £343,560. The level of business rates income collectable has
fallen following the resolution of appeals relating to purpose built doctors
surgeries (which is partially offset by the unwinding of the existing appeals
provision); and an increase in the level of provision required overall for both
the existing appeals and the assumed reduction in RV on current year
liabilities which will result from appeals in future years.
This variance continues to be subject to change over the coming periods with
fluctuations in business rates appeals as the 2010 outstanding appeals are
heard and the level of 2017 appeals becomes apparent.
It should be further noted that this forecast outturn assumes that the
budgeted £200,000 of business rates income retained as a result of being
part of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool will be achieved. The forecasts
for the Pool continue to be monitored by the Pool Lead; Derby City Council.
The actual outturn will depend upon the performance of every member of the
Pool. Therefore this element of the business rates retention income is
subject to change.
In line with the Medium Term Financial Plan requirements, any surplus
against budget will need to be earmarked in order to support the increased
deficit in 2018/19 as a result of accounting for business rates appeals and
reliefs.

Page 17

Use of Earmarked Reserves:
At the half year stage the Authority is anticipating its net use of reserves for the
year to be £42,550 above the £553,570 originally budgeted;
Property Services £60,560 use: the cost of resolving urgent health and safety
works at the Council’s properties is to be covered out of this reserve
Electoral Services £40,000 contribution: this is a budgeted annual
contribution in to a reserve earmarked to spread the cost of the Borough’s
elections over the term of a council.
Regeneration Services £36,450 use: an earmarked reserve that exists to
support regeneration projects within the borough is being applied to support
housing delivery initiatives within the year.
Leisure Services £10,000 contribution: a number of grants and contributions
received in the year will be placed into reserve for future specific sport and
leisure related projects.
Horticulture £4,460 reduced use: works on recreation grounds and open
spaces are part funded each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies
previously received from Developers as part of their planning obligations.
Only £2,090 of the £6,550 originally budgeted is now likely to be applied in
2017/18.

Page 18

3.

Pavilion Gardens

3.1

This section of the report details the financial performance of the trading activity at
Pavilion Gardens. The Pavilion Gardens trading results are included in the
General Fund Revenue Account.

3.2

The 2017/18 budget is a net cost of £293,693. At the end of the second quarter
the projected outturn on the Pavilion Gardens Trading Statement is £44,450 in
excess of budget. This reflects a £16,000 downturn in trading income in the year
to date plus a £28,000 loss against room hire revenues.

3.3

The table below summarises the financial performance of the six separate trading
activities – Pavilion Café, Coffee Area, Tourist Information Centre (TIC) & Retail
Area, Events, Outside Areas and Functions – in the Pavilion Garden

Description
Pavilion
Café

Projected Outturn 2017/18
TIC &
Events Outside
Coffee
Area
Retail

(588,580) (221,990)

Income

(172,260) (176,640)

Function

(47,490)

(138,170)

Projected
Outturn

2017/18
Budget

Variance

(1,345,130) (1,454,030)

108,900

Expenditure

688,710

310,570

239,120

236,200

57,140

151,540

1,683,280

1,747,730

(64,450)

Net Cost /
(Contribution)

100,130

88,580

66,860

59,560

9,650

13,370

338,150

293,700

44,450

Coffee
Area

2016/17
Budget

Variance

Pavilion
Café

Description

(667,730) (185,260)
744,280
289,620

Income
Expenditure
Net Cost /
(Contribution)

3.4

76,550

104,360

Outturn 2016/17
TIC &
Events
Retail

Outturn
Outside

(172,840) (225,720)
240,460 270,710
67,620

44,990

Function

(44,820)
94,770

(105,700)
124,310

49,950

18,610

(1,402,070) (1,290,550) (111,520)
1,764,150 1,652,500 111,650
362,080

361,950

The following should be noted:







Pavilion Café – Trading activity derives from the Café during the normal
opening hours of the business between 9.30am and 5pm (and later during
the Festival Season in July and August)
Coffee Area – Trading Activity driven from the Coffee Bar.
Tourist Information Centre (TIC) and Retail Area – Trading activity driven
from the Retail area (including gallery Rental and artists’ commission) and
the Tourist Information Centre)
Events – Trading activity driven from room hire bookings, in-house events
and fairs
Outside - Trading activity driven from the miniature train and Lakeside Kiosk.
Functions –Trading activity in respect of food and drink driven from private
bookings.

Page 19

130

4

Alliance Environmental Services

4.1

Alliance Environmental Services (AES) is a company created with a vision to
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders:
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council.

4.2

Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver High
Peak Borough Council Waste services. The followed the end of the previous
contract with Veolia Environmental Services.

4.3

AES has provided management accounts as at 30th September 2017 to forecast
the outturn for 2017/18, which includes the period from the commencement of the
company on 7th August to 31st March 2017. The company is reporting a forecast
profit of £91,467 before year 1 savings payable to HPBC, which is an improved
position of £53,333 against the budget. A summary of the performance and the
variances against the budget is shown in the table below:

2017-18

Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Contract Fee

(£1,818,854)

(£1,818,854)

£0

(£127,000)

(£60,000)

£67,000

Risk Plan

Variance
Payable by HPBC
Reduction in anticipated Risk Items payable on
contract fee: lower pension costs and reduced use of
spare vehicles
Net £14k from improved recycling income;

Other Income

(£325,907)

(£354,708)

(£28,801)

£10k additional workshop income;
£5k additional contribution to setup costs incurred by
AES, chargeable to Ansa.

Turnover

(£2,271,761)

(£2,233,562)

£38,199

£1,940,875

£1,851,963

(£88,912)

£74,345

£76,888

£2,543

£7k net reduction in salary/ pension costs;

Cost of Sales

Charges levied by
Ansa

£2k reduction on Ansa charges on vehicle overheads;
£4 increased costs on external support (management/
admin/ HR).
£8k net saving on vacant admin post covered by Ansa
admin support;

Administrative
Expenses

£218,407

£213,244

(£5,163)

(Profit)/ Loss

(£38,134)

(£91,467)

(£53,333)

£64,930

£64,930

£0

£26,796

(£26,537)

(£53,333)

Year 1 pro-rata
savings payable to
HPBC
Net (Profit)/ Loss

£82k reduction resulting from removal of Round K4
plus spare vehicle.

Page 20

£2k additional payroll bureau costs – delayed migration
to monthly payroll originally expected November 2017,
now January 2018

4.4

The contract fee payable by HPBC of £1,818,854 has increased from the original
estimate by £140,474 largely due to additional costs for short-term vehicle hire to
deliver the Waste Service – which are offset in 2017/18 by savings developing
from the wider waste service (see 4.6). There is a commitment from all parties to
commence procurement of the vehicles for a more long-term cost effective
solution.

4.5

In addition to the contract fee, ‘risk items’ of £127,000 were added to recognise
that there were several areas of potential cost increases arising from the company
set-up. These included the need to cover vacancies; the provision of spare
vehicles; fuel cost; and additional pension costs. These are being monitored
during the year and will only be payable if the additional costs come to fruition. The
current forecast shows that at this stage on £60,000 of these risk items remain.

4.6

The savings plan for year one of the AES joint venture partnership contained
£100,000 comprising £65,000 from waste operating efficiencies and £35,000 from
waste management savings. The pro-rata amount of these savings applicable
from August 2017 to March 2018 is £64,930. This is to be paid to the Council at
the end of the year.

4.7

The net additional costs, after the reimbursement of savings as a contribution to
the efficiencies programme, are largely offset by other underspends in the wider
waste service not related to AES. These include improved domestic recycling
income and reduced trade waste disposal costs.

Page 21

5

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

5.1

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2017/18.

5.2

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) included
a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
targeting savings of £2.1 million. This is required to balance the forecast budget
deficit position of £1.7m and also the carry forward of unachieved efficiencies from
2016/17 of £0.4m.

5.3

The new Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy will have the effect of both
reducing expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The
strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline
service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council
to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set
out in the Corporate Plan.

5.4

The programme has five areas of focus:






Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a number
of large service functions which are currently provided by an external
contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming to an end.
This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with proper
consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract commitments
have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services across the alliance
with High Peak. The individual projects will focus on Waste Collection &
Environment Services, Leisure Management and Facilities Management
Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising
the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to allow for the
necessary capital investment
Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth
based upon the established Local Plan.
Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on
income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas
of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-statutory services

5.5

The 2017/18 budget provides for the achievement of £310,000 of such savings in
year – with a significant focus on income generation, major procurements and
management structure review.

5.6

At the end of Quarter 2, £194,150 has been taken against the overall Efficiency
programme relating to management savings, additional income, procurement
savings and postage and print savings. The Council is on course to meet the
overall savings requirements for the year.

5.7

In addition there are a number of vacant staff posts to be reviewed (in line with the
service review process and as a result of other efficiency projects) which will

Page 22

potentially contribute to the overall efficiency programme (see section 2.5). This
review may give rise to over-achievement of the in-year efficiency target.
5.8

The authority carries a reserve of £100,000 earmarked to support the strategy
which can be drawn on to offset any remaining one-off and short term costs from
the service review process and consequent shortfall against the 2017/18 efficient
target. This requirement will be monitored throughout the year.
HRA – Financial Improvement Plan

5.9

The HRA Improvement Plan was presented alongside the MTFP in February
2017, and identified £1.2m in savings to be achieved over a four year period in
order to address the budget shortfall of £770,000 by 2020/21 and ensure the HRA
30-year business plan is financial sustainable.

5.10 The 2017/18 savings target was set at £625,000. At the Quarter 2 stage,
approximately £460,000 in ongoing savings have been realised, with other in-year
underspends resulting in an overall projected surplus of £581,630 (see section 6).
It is assumed that the £625,000 will be achieved by the end of the year.

Page 23

6

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

6.1

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the
operation of the Council’s housing stock.

6.2

The 2017/18 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a
surplus of £57,000. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial
Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of £211,200 in unused budgets from
2016/17 to facilitate delayed capital works to complete a retaining wall at Alma
street and replace a commercial boiler in Hartington Gardens. This brought the
2017/18 budget to £154,200.

6.3

Projected expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account for 2017/18, at the
second Quarter stage, is £14,699,450 with estimated income at £15,126,880. This
represents a surplus for the year of £427,430 (i.e. £581,630 below budget).
2017-18
Revised
Budget

2017-18
Expected
Outturn

2017-18
Variance

£

£

£

(14,495,540)
(617,730)
(15,113,270)

(14,501,260)
(625,620)
(15,126,880)

(5,720)
(7,890)
(13,610)

3,932,800
3,383,090
119,390
692,360
2,099,030
3,381,630
1,659,170
15,267,470

3,807,800
3,108,090
105,700
632,360
2,099,030
3,342,300
1,604,170
14,699,450

(125,000)
(125,000)
(275,000)
(13,690)
(60,000)
(39,330)
(55,000)
(568,020)

154,200

(427,430)

(581,630)

Housing Revenue Account

INCOME
Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment
Interest & Debt Management
Contribution to Capital
Surplus(-)/Deficit

6.4

The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account”
(HRA). By “ring -fencing’ the HRA, the Council ensures that the management and
maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from the income generated
by rents and other related sources. The Council is required under Part VI (Section
76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by setting the appropriate
budget and monitoring progress against that budget throughout the financial year.
The surplus balance predicted by the Council at this second quarter stage will be
transferred to reserves within the Housing Revenue Account.

6.5

There is no significant overspends to be noted at this stage

Page 24

6.6

There are four significant underspends to report at this stage.


Repairs and Maintenance (£125,000) – the forecast savings relate to salary
costs following service reviews – this will be reviewed during 2017/18 to
ensure it is sustainable and future year budgets will be reduced accordingly
as part of the MTFP.



Supervision and Management (£275,000) – The majority of this forecast
underspend relates to savings in salary costs following service reviews – this
will be reviewed during 2017/18 to ensure it is sustainable and future year
budgets will be reduced accordingly as part of the MTFP.



Other Operating Expenditure (£60,000) - savings have been achieved on
postage, stationery and print costs, and as a result of the review of the
‘golden goodbye’ scheme and moving support grant.



Contribution to Capital (£55,000) – The capital programme includes a charge
for salary / commissioning costs derived from internal management of each
capital scheme. Following service reviews and changes to working practices
the charge made is expected to reduce by £55,000.

Page 25

7

General Fund Capital Programme

7.1

This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s General Fund
Capital Programme.

7.2

The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund Capital
Programme position at 30th September 2017. Further detail on a scheme by
scheme basis is contained in Annex A.
2017/18
Approved
Budget
£

Q2
Changes
£

2017/18
Revised
Budget
£

Expected
Outturn
2017/18
£

Expected
Variance
2017/18
£

Housing

142,000

-

142,000

142,000

-

Housing Standards

455,240

-

455,240

455,240

-

5,142,810

-

5,142,810

3,632,070

(1,510,740)

1,350

-

1,350

104,310

102,960

302,940

-

302,940

302,940

-

78,920
6,123,260

-

78,920
6,123,260

68,900
4,705,460

(10,020)
(1,417,800)

Property Services
ICT
Regeneration
Horticulture

-

10,000

-

10,000

10,000

-

External Contributions

516,760

3,960

520,720

520,720

-

Capital Receipts

642,000

-

642,000

642,000

-

4,950,540
6,123,260

3,532,740
4,705,460

(1,417,800)
(1,417,800)

Planning Obligations

Borrowing

4,954,500
6,123,260

(3,960)
-

7.3

The 2017/18 General Fund Capital Budget as updated and approved by the
Executive on 3rd August 2017 was set at £6,123,260.

7.4

There are two significant projected capital spend variance to note at this stage:


Property Services (£1,510,740 underspend) - A number of projects have been
re-profiled into future years following the on-going review and prioritisation of
works contained within the Asset Management Plan



ICT (£102,960 overspend) - The implementation of the ICT Strategy has been
accelerated resulting in a forecast overspend of £102,960 in 2017-18. As
previously reported the costs are being met from re-profiling the overall ICT
provision within the latest approved 4 year Capital Programme. This is the
final stage of the IT infrastructure upgrade; the programme objectives are to
ensure the infrastructure is fit for purpose to support the Alliance’s future
business priorities. The proposed timeframe of works is 18 weeks with the
works scheduled to be completed in this financial year to ensure ongoing PSN
(Public Sector Network) compliance

Page 26

8

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

8.1

This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s HRA capital
spending.

8.2

The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme
position at 30th September 2017. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is
contained in Annex B.

Scheme

2017/18
Approved
Budget per
MTFP

Q2
Changes

2017-18
Revised
Budget

Q2
Actual
Spend

2017-18
Expected
Outturn

2017/18
Expected
Variance

£

£

£

£

£

£

3,597,200

100,000

3,697,200

829,063

3,677,985

(19,215)

Repairs Team Capital Works

395,000

(100,000)

295,000

157,108

314,215

19,215

Commissioning Fees

155,000

-

155,000

-

100,000

(55,000)

4,147,200

-

4,147,200

986,171

4,092,200

(55,000)

2,099,030

-

2,099,030

986,171

2,099,030

-

389,000

-

389,000

-

389,000

-

1,659,170

-

1,659,170

-

1,604,170

(55,000)

4,147,000

-

4,147,200

986,171

4,092,200

(55,000)

Asset Management Works

Total
Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Receipts Applied
HRA Contribution

8.3

The 2017/18 HRA Capital Budget as updated and approved by the Executive on
3rd August 2017 was set at £4,147,200.

8.4

During the second quarter, £986,171 has been incurred on HRA Capital Schemes
principally on central heating boiler replacements, electrical works, kitchen
replacements and roofing works.

8.5

There is just one significant projected capital variance to note at this stage


8.6

Commissioning Fees (£55,000 underspend) – This underspend relates to a
reduction in the internal recharge of staff costs associated with delivery of the
annual capital programme.

There are no funding changes to note at this stage.

Page 27

9

Treasury Management

9.1

This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high
level summary as the Audit and Regulatory Committee receives detailed
operational updates on treasury management.
Investments

9.2

Cash Investments held on the 30th September 2017 totalled £18.2 million.
£38,920 interest was earned on these investments up to the end of the second
quarter. The average level of funds available for investment during quarter 1 and 2
totalled £17.1 million.

9.3

The Council has budgeted to receive £64,720 in investment income in 2017/18.
The budget was set with the expectation that the low interest environment would
continue, however interest receipts are performing well at the moment therefore a
surplus of £5,000 is expected against the budget.
Borrowing

9.4

Outstanding borrowing at 30th September 2017 totalled £72.2 million, including
£411,000 which relates to finance lease facilities.

9.5

The Council’s general fund and HRA has budgeted to incur £1,425,230 and
£3,381,630 respectively in interest charges and other financing costs in 2017/18
This included external borrowing mid-year to support a general fund borrowing
requirement of £4.7 million. This has now reduced to a forecast £3.5 million, which
is not anticipated to be funded until towards the end of the year. Therefore an
underspend of £42,000 is anticipated on external borrowing costs to the general
fund. However this is offset under the ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing which the
Council adopts. The share of interest attributable to the HRA has changed in line
with the CFR now attributable to the HRA, meaning that the general fund
borrowing costs outturn would be £3,000 underspent. The opposite effect of which
occurring in the HRA.

9.6

There has been no new borrowing to date. The treasury team continue to monitor
opportunities for new borrowing for this considering the forecast borrowing
requirement and the cost of carry of any borrowings taken.

Page 28

10

Revenue Collection

10.1 This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax,
Business Rates and Sundry Debt.
10.2 The collection rate outturn for Quarter 2 2017/18 was as follows:


Council Tax – 57.4% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2017,
compared to 57.5% for the same period last year.



Business Rates – 58.6% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September
2017, compared with 58.5% for the same period last year.
- NB: A particularly large hereditament payer paid the 2017/18 liability in full in May
2017, but during 2016/17 payments were made in accordance with the 10 month
instalment plan. This has affected the comparative collection rate by 0.9%.



Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of
Quarter 2 was £267,417 which compares with £266,876 at 30th September
2016.

10.3 There a number of balances that are recommended for write off as they are
deemed to be non-recoverable. These are detailed in the schedule attached at
Appendix D to this report.
10.4 The Council’s Financial Regulations state that no sums of money should be
written off without appropriate written authorisation:





10.5

For amounts under £100, the authorisation of the Finance Manager is required
For amounts between £100 and £2,000, the authorisation of the Chief Finance Officer
is required
For amounts between £2,000 and £5,000, the authorisation of the Executive
Councillor for Corporate Resources is required via a Delegated Report

For amounts greater than £5,000, Cabinet approval is required

It should be noted that the Council collects in excess of 99% of council tax,
business rates and sundry debts. However not all debt is collectable. The
balances detailed in the schedule attached to Appendix D have, following
sustained recovery action, been deemed irrecoverable. The basis and grounds for
write off are also set out in the table.

Page 29

ANNEX A
General Fund Capital Programme Update - 30th September 2017

Scheme

2017/18
Approved
Budget

Q2
Changes

2017/18
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2017/18

Expected
Variance
2017/18

£

£

£

£

£

Housing & Housing Standards
Affordable Housing Project

142,000

-

142,000

142,000

-

Disabled Facilities Grants
Landlord Accreditation Grant Scheme

427,510
27,730
597,240

-

427,510
27,730
597,240

427,510
27,730
597,240

-

5,142,810
5,142,810

-

5,142,810
5,142,810

3,632,070
3,632,070

(1,510,740)
(1,510,740)

1,350
1,350

-

1,350
1,350

104,310
104,310

102,960
102,960

58,610

-

58,610

58,610

-

244,330
302,940

-

244,330
302,940

244,330
302,940

-

-

Whaley Bridge Memorial Park

18,920

-

18,920

8,900

(10,020)

Play Areas

60,000
78,920

-

60,000
78,920

60,000
68,900

(10,020)

6,123,260

-

6,123,260

4,705,460

(1,417,800)

-

Property Services
Asset Management Programme
ICT

-

Regeneration
Heritage Regeneration Grants
Buxton Crescent & Spa

-

Horticulture

Total General Fund

Page 30

ANNEX B
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update – 30th September 2017

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:
Roofing & External Works
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Central Heating
Central heating - One Offs
Electrical Works
Health & Safety
Aids & Adaptations
Unity Walk & Quarry Close Railing
Cross Street Structural
Commercial Boiler Renewal Eccles Fold
Corbar Road Roofing Works
Scooter Stores
Commercial Boiler Renewal –
Hartington Gardens
ALMA Wall
Lightning Protection
Gladstone Street Works
Shop Works
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Major Voids
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/
Commissioning Costs

TOTAL SPEND

Original
Budget
2017/18

Q2
Changes

Revised
Budget
2017/18

Q2
Actual
Spend

17/18
Expected
Outturn

17/18
Expected
Variance

£

£

£

£

£

£

228,000

-

228,000

107,517

228,000

-

350,000

150,000

500,000

131,487

500,000

-

100,000

-

100,000

2,900

100,000

-

780,000

(50,000)

730,000

-

730,000

-

380,000

50,000

430,000

308,051

430,000

-

748,000

-

748,000

167,563

725,475

(22,525)

85,000

(77,000)

8,000

-

-

(8,000)

350,000

-

350,000

38,689

350,000

-

35,000

-

35,000

-

35,000

-

55,000

-

55,000

-

55,000

-

50,000

27,000

77,000

4,500

77,000

-

40,000

-

40,000

339

40,000

-

75,000

-

75,000

1,645

75,000

-

198,000

-

198,000

35,295

203,000

5,000

33,200

-

33,200

25,003

33,410

210

40,000

-

40,000

-

40,000

-

40,000

-

40,000

-

40,000

-

10,000
3,597,200

100,000

10,000
3,697,200

6,074
829,063

16,100
3,677,985

6,100
(19,215)

100,000

(100,000)

-

-

-

-

35,000

-

35,000

24,815

49,630

14,630

200,000

-

200,000

98,945

197,889

(2,111)

60,000
395,000

(100,000)

60,000
295,000

33,348
157,108

66,696
314,215

6,696
19,215

155,000
155,000

-

155,000
155,000

-

100,000
100,000

(55,000)
(55,000)

4,147,200

-

4,147,200

986,171

4,092,200

(55,000)

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

2017/18
Second Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 33

1.

Introduction

1.1

A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from the implementation of the
Procurement Strategy which was originally agreed in April 2014.

1.2

The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives. The key actions in
in the strategy included:







Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of
contracts.
Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of
excellence to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils
Revising Financial and Procurement Procedure Rules to support
transparency, timeliness of contract award and greater control
Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as
appropriate
Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
Implementation of e-tendering
Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement
opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.3

Significant progress has been made since April 2014, in conjunction with the
external support of the Alliance Transformation partner Northgate Information
Solutions. The reliance on this external support has now ended as the new
procurement staffing structure has been implemented as part of the service
review process. This has enabled new working initiatives to be implemented
including the integration of the creditors function into procurement will ensure
the ‘purchase to pay cycle’ is robust and able to meet the demands of
efficiency and performance targets.

1.4

Additionally, the introduction of new systems and electronic processes now
enables the Council to be fully compliant in accordance with the Transparency
Code and Public Contract Regulations requirements – with all procurement
opportunities over £5,000 now openly advertised.

1.5

The Procurement Procedure Rules have been recently updated and the
updated Procurement Strategy is scheduled for presentation during 2017/18.

Page 34

2.

Second Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1

The activity supported by the procurement function for the second quarter July
to September 2017 is summarised below:
Second Quarter

High Value
(more than
£172,000)

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

Low Value
(less than
£172,000)
3
3

30
15
45

Total

33
15
48

2.2

Annex A provides details of the 48 procurement exercises reviewed and
completed during quarter 2.

2.4

As a result of procurement activity, at the end of quarter 2, cashable savings of
£16,000 (£6,000 HRA) have been achieved to date, which have been offset
against the efficiency programme.

2.5

A number of one-off procurement exercises have also taken place – which
may result in savings against overall budget. This will be assessed when
reviewing overall expenditure and undertaking a comparison against budget to
identify where budgets can be reduced due to procurement activity.

Page 35

3.

2017/18 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1

The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or
high value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion in
2017/18.
Second Quarter

High Value
(more than
£172,000)

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

7
7
14

Low Value
(less than
£172,000)
38
23
61

Total

45
30
75

In addition to the above, there are 123 listed entries brought forward from
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC
combined).
3.2

Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled
for delivery in 2017/18 includes:









3.3

Pavilion Gardens Operating Concession Contract
Leisure Centre Management
CCTV Maintenance and Monitoring Arrangements
Elections Printing and Canvass Services
Electrical Inspections and Services – HRA Housing Properties
Gas Servicing & Maintenance – HRA Housing Properties
Construction Materials Supply
Sub-contractor framework – Minor Works

The Procurement team are also supporting on the waste, street scene and
grounds maintenance joint venture delivery model and facilities management
project. In addition to managing the hybrid mail project for High Peak BC and
Staffordshire Moorlands DC.

Page 36

4.

Procurement Performance

4.1

This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement
activity and the payment of suppliers.

4.2

Performance for the second quarter is highlighted below:
Performance Indicator
% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget
% of invoices paid within 30
days

4.3

Target

Performance at
30th September
2017

65%

71%

72%

71%

95%

96%

Performance Indicators have fallen short of target in terms of on-contract
spend:On-Contract Spend PI:
- There has been a targeted improvement during quarter 2 (quarter 1 69%),
there are a number of key priority areas for supplies later in the year for the
housing repairs service which will contribute to a further increase in oncontract spend.

Page 37

ANNEX A
Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed
Autho
rity

Contract name

High Value (>172,000)
HPBC Boiler Replacement
Programme 171/8
HRA Housing

Contract
Description

Recurring
or One-off
contracts

Service Area

Contract
Awarded To

Term
years

Total
Contract
Value includes
extensions

Capital works
Housing HPBC

Recurring

Assets Housing
Capital

Dodd Group
(Midlands) Ltd

One
off

£604,541

Frozen Goods Bidvest,
Holdsworth &
Eden Farm
Dry Goods Bidvest &
Holdsworth
Fresh –
Tomsons,
Blackhurst,
Clifton, Mac
Burnham, RG
Morris,
Underwood Meat,
Seafood
Holdings, M& J
Seafoods,
Hartington
Cheese & Wine,
Bidvest, Bakewell
Bakery
Novus Property
Solutions Ltd

1+1

£437,940

1

£300,000

Warmer Energy
Services

0

£160,103

Dawson Rentals
Sweepers

1

£74,880

HPBC

Food Supplies
(Fresh, Dry& Frozen)

Supply of foods for
Pavilion Gardens

Recurring

Visitor Services
- Pavilion
Gardens

HPBC

Aids & Adaptations HRA Bathrooms

Carry out minor
and major
adaptations works
following OT
assessments

Recurring

Assets Housing
Capital

HPBC

Hartington Gardens
Boiler Plant Renewal
- Installation and
Servicing

HPBC

Street Sweepers

HPBC

Glossop Leisure
Centre Roof renewal

Replacement of flat
roof

One-off

Assets Capital
Projects

Fulwood
Contractors

0

£72,828

HPBC

Eccles Fold
Commercial Boiler
ReplacementInstallation

Replacement of a
communal heating
system at Eccles
Fold Sheltered
Housing Scheme

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Warmer Energy

0

£58,316

Low Value (<£172,000)
Replacement of
One-off
Assets Housing
plant room.
Capital
Installation of new
heating boilers and
separate provision
of hot water
Interim short term
Recurring
rental - Single
Source

Page 38

HPBC

Fire Damage Repair Council Property New
Mills

Fire Damage repair
at 111 New Street
New Mills

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Novus Property
Solutions

0

£31,469

HPBC

Hartington Gardens
Boiler Plant Renewal
- Equipment Supply

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Grahams The
Plumbers

0

£31,168

HPBC

Eccles Fold Boiler
plant Equipment
Supply

Supply of new
Boiler plant
equipment for
Hartington Gardens
project - Product
sourced via Fusion
21 Valiant
Purchase of
materials for the
Boiler replacement
at Eccles Fold
Chapel

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Grahams
Plumbers

0

£16,000

HPBC

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal General Planning
Evidence

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal General Planning
Evidence

One-off

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control

White Peak
Planning

0

£15,000

HPBC

Brown Edge Road
Planning Appeal Counsel

Brown Edge Road
Planning Appeal Counsel

One-off

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control

Giles Cannock

0

£15,000

HPBC

Food Supplies Eggs
Pavilion Gardens
Buxton

Recurring

Visitor Services
- Pavilion
Gardens

Eggs (PROC2567 C ) Award
to Tomsons

1+1

£14,046

HPBC

Ecological surveys
and advice

Supply of Fresh
foods for Pavilion
Gardens (Eggs
Only)
Ecological surveys
and advice

Recurring

Regeneration

Derbyshire
Wildlife Trust

1

£13,100

HPBC

Asset Management
and Office
Accommodation
Review

Asset Management
and Office
Accommodation
Review

One-off

Assets M&E

Cushman &
Wakefield

0

£10,974

HPBC

Hartington Gardens
Boiler Plant Renewal
- Design Element of
Project

Principle Designer
Role and project
management.

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Morgan Lambert

0

£10,000

HPBC

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal Landscape Evidence

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal Landscape
Evidence

One-off

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control

Enzygo

0

£8,538

HPBC

Eccles Fold
Commercial Boiler
Replacement- Design
and PM Services

Principle Designer
Role and project
management.
Eccles Fold
replacement

One-off

Assets Housing
Capital

Morgan Lambert

0

£8,500

HPBC

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal Housing land supply
Evidence

Brown Edge Road
Planning appeal Housing land
supply Evidence

One-off

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control

Urban Vision

0

£7,695

HPBC

New Lounge and
dining furniture
Queens Court
Sheltered Scheme

Supply of new
furniture for
Queens Court
communal areas

One-off

Customer
Services Housing
Tenancy
Services

Nigel Wilkinson

0

£6,375

Page 39

HPBC

Installation of new
Swings at Bridgemont
Play Area

Replacement of 2
Swing sets
including the safety
surfacing to meet
current standards.

One-off

Operational
Services Horticulture

AMG Sport play
Ltd

0

£5,888

HPBC

Viability Assessment
at Dinting Road
Glossop

One-off

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control

GVA

0

£4,000

HPBC

Passive Seismic
Survey

Viability
assessment
required at Dinting
Vale Glossop for a
planning
application
Passive Seismic
Survey, British
Geology Survey

One-off

Legal & Election
Services

British Geology
Survey

0

£3,291

HPBC

Elnor Lane
Landscape
Assessment

One-off

0

£2,313

Widening of Footpath
access at Marion
Court Buxton

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control
Assets Housing
Capital

Stuart Ryder

HPBC

Landscape
assessment in
support of Planning
application
The foot path at
Marion Court
required works to
enable easy access
for residents and
visitors

Derbyshire
County Council

0

£2,280

HPBC

Charlestown works
Viability Assessment

Second opinion
required re the
viability study

One-off

Keppie Massey

0

£2,250

HPBC

D.A. Benefits
Calculator

Benefits calculator
software

Recurring

HPBC

Choice Based
Lettings System

Choice Based
Lettings System

Recurring

HPBC

Infomaker Report
Writing Software

Report Writing
Software

Recurring

HPBC

Geo-Environ

Geo-Environ
software

Recurring

HPBC

Dynamic Resource
Scheduling System

Opti-time Dynamic
Resource
Scheduling System

Recurring

Regulatory
Services Planning &
Building Control
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

HPBC

Graphical Repairs
Ordering System

Graphical Repairs
Ordering System

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

HPBC

Housing
Management System

Housing
Management
System

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

One-off

Page 40

Software Licences:
Ongoing annual renewals Transformation Service reviewing all
licence agreements, Procurement not
required.
Removed from Procurement Forward
Plan

JOINT PROCUREMENT ACTIVITY
Autho
rity

Contract name

Low Value (<£172,000)
Joint
Taxi Plates and
Brackets

Contract
Description

Recurring
or One-off
contracts

Service Area

Contract
Awarded To

Term
years

Total
Contract
Value includes
extensions

Taxi Plates and
Brackets

Recurring

Regulatory
Services Licensing

VIP System
Limited

1

£25,000

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Customer
Services Customer
Services

Capita Secure
Information
Solutions

1

£12,767

Not to be
renewed

N/a

N/a

Recurring

Customer
Services Benefits

Not to be
renewed

N/a

N/a

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- HR
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

Joint

Financial System
Integra

Finance and eprocurement
system

Recurring

Joint

Live Scanning of files

Recurring

Joint

Benefits Claim Forms
printing

Joint

Statmap GIS

Scanning of
documents
received by
customer services
and also scanning
of applications
Production, printing
& delivery of
Benefits Claim
Forms
Statmap GIS
software for
intranet

Joint

On-line employment
law manual

One year
subscription

Recurring

Joint

Flare

EH/Waste/Integrati
on software

Recurring

Joint

Limehouse

Regen software

Recurring

Joint

Election software

Express software

Recurring

Joint

BACS Payments
Software

BACS Payments
Software

Recurring

Joint

LLPG (Local Land &
Property Gazeteer)

Property database

Recurring

Joint

I-LAP

DC/BC/Lic&Land
charges

Recurring

Joint

iCritical software

Annual subscription
to anti-virus, imager
control, and other
network security
software [Email
filtering only,
supplier for Web

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT
Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

Page 41

Software Licences:
Ongoing annual renewals Transformation Service reviewing all
licence agreements, Procurement not
required.
Removed from Procurement Forward
Plan

filtering being
sourced]

Joint

Joint

IT - Revenues and
Benefits system
(shared module
licences support and
maintenance)
LalPac

IT system licences

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

Licensing software

Recurring

Organisational
Development &
Transformation
- ICT

Page 42

Page 43

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2017/18 (Q2)

High Peak Q2 Summary
The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to September 2017 in relation to
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and
compliments.
Performance Overview
There are 126 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak, which represents a reduction on last year.
The chart below shows the results for quarter two against 46 indicators. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are
detailed at the end of this report.

Page 44

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the revised 2017-2019
Corporate Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects.
80

60

63%
35%

40
20

2%

0
On track

Off track

No return

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Off Track
In danger of going off Track

49%
36%

On Track
15%

Better

Weaker

No Change

Not yet started
Complete / Closed

Customer Feedback Overview
The targets for low levels of repeat complaints and responding to complaints within 10 days are both on track as at the close of quarter two
and there has been a significant decrease in the number of stage 1 complaints compared to Q2 last year (-33%). A project looking at how we
define, handle and learn from complaints is well underway and should be completed this financial year.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work
HP Aim 1: Q2 Results 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 1: Q2 Trends 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 45

Housing Benefit processing times for new claims and changes of circumstance remain ‘off track’ but have improved each month. Under aim
one the Council also has ‘off track’ performance for the number of households in temporary accommodation and one delayed right to buy
transaction.

Celebrating Success:
At the close of Quarter Two the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 The prevention of homelessness (cases assisted)

Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action

Status

Commentary – September

Page 46

Continue to influence the provision of accessible health and
social care services through the Council’s Scrutiny work
programme

High Peak:
North Derbyshire CCG – CCG attended Aug meeting to outline
the results of “Better Care Closer to Home” consultation,
committee response to the outcome sent to CCG.
Tameside and Glossop CCG provided an update re Care Together
Programme, consultation launched around proposals.
Social Services Adult Care - no update.
Future of NHS in Derbyshire - watching brief
Blythe House- Hospice and Home project- presentation to be
made to members
Derbyshire connect- new community transport arrangements.

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit
processing

Corporate Plan Priorities and Annual report findings shared with
senior managers at the June Managers Forum. This has kick
started the benchmarking activities and the Information Team
have provided background data packs to facilitate process
benchmarking by Managers in conjunction with their Finance
Business Partners. Service is members of a county-wide
manager’s forum looking at benefits performance and measures.
Post service review our costs have greatly reduced and when the
latest figures are available will be completing site visits to
partners.
Housing review emerging savings have been incorporated into
the Feb 2017 Medium Term Financial Plan (approx. £1.4m to
date). Based on the Financial Improvement Plan and under
spends achieved in 2016/17, it is likely that this deficit will be
reduced significantly when updating the MTFP in November (risk
around the outcome of the stock condition survey results).
The 30 year plan shows that currently, balances are drawn and
borrowing is increased to the imposed debt cap. The current
plan is not sustainable and further savings are required.
Systems Review completed including all Housing systems, with

Complete and implement a Housing Management and
Revenue Plan

Priority Action

Page 47

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve
improved health and value for money outcomes

Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners

Undertake a review of the current CCTV system to look at its
cost-effectiveness in preparation for the expiry of the
maintenance contract in early 2018

Status

Commentary – September
recommendations for future IT systems to ensure efficiency to
be proposed. The systems review is being done in conjunction
with a review of tasks and functions in repairs/assets/housing
management to streamline processes and ensure teams work
together effectively. Recommendations for system
rationalisation/improvement to be presented to next HRA
working group.
External support engaged focusing on service charges and
prioritising the finalisation of a rent policy report to be
presented for approval during 2017, changes to be in place for
April 2018 to allow time for appropriate consultation. Agreed
timetable to ensure Rent Policy is ready for inclusion in the
MTFP Feb 18.
HRA Working Group to continue; work programme drawn up
and issued for future meetings. Stock condition survey
progressing.
The procurement process for recruiting consultancy support has
been completed and FMG Business Consulting Ltd was
appointed at the beginning of June. Inception meetings have
taken place between FMG and key officers. They will deliver a
two stage programme between June and October 2017 that will
cover supply and demand analysis, options appraisals and
delivery models for future provision of sport and leisure facilities
for both Councils. Lead consultant presented stage one
assessment to AMT on 2nd August.
Initial exercise reported, additional partnerships identified for
consideration. The report has been to AMT and a decision made
to engage an external person to check the report findings and
undertake some benchmarking with other authorities (expected
to commence in September 2017).
SGW Consultants have completed their initial review of the
Councils’ CCTV systems and have presented the Council with
their report. There has been some variation to the initial project
requirements (such as no longer including the Council’s internal

Priority Action

Status

Commentary – September
cameras within the review).
The next phase has now been agreed with the consultants who
have produced a draft report detailing various options for
presentation to Councillors.

Page 48

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
HP Aim 2: Q2 Results 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 2: Q2 Trends 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

No Return

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 49

Aim two is the home of our ‘effective use of assets’ objective and therefore the home of our housing stock measures. Several of these are off
track, including average re-let times due to the effects of major voids and hard to let properties. Performance is also below target for sickness
absence (long term cases) and sundry debt levels, which are expected to reduce. The ‘no return’ measure relates to the DCC FM contract for
which no performance data has been received in 2017/18; the Assets Manager has now escalated this issue to Director-level at the County.

Celebrating Success:
At the close of Quarter Two the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:







IT system and network availability
Procurement activity on forward plan
FOI requests dealt with on time, repeat complaint levels and complaints dealt with within 10 working days
Non-priority repairs undertaken by appointment
Internal audit recommendations implemented on time

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme

Page 50

Benchmark and review the Council’s
approach to customer complaints as part
of the introduction of a new automated
management system for complaint
handling and reporting
Develop and implement a plan to identify
new and innovative ways of generating
income

Refresh and implement the Asset
Management Plan, including a review of
public estate, and ensure adequate
facilities management arrangements are
in place

Status

Commentary - September
Digital Portal Launched July 2017 and CRM now switched off. Data archive set up so
that historical CRM data is retained.
Approximately 70% of service requests have now been removed from the CRM,
with advisors being signposted to the web forms. All general contact forms are
now available in the new software.
Single Person Discount reviews are now underway and are progressing on track as
planned. Housing Benefit Risk Based Verification is live for all online applications
and changes. Changes to HB enquiries/ referencing are now in place and we are
implementing a dedicated resource to the front line to ensure a 'right first time
approach'
Timeline developed to roll out the portal to more service areas with phase 2
commenced 17th July and now underway. The ican communications plan has been
approved and implementation began in September, formal launch on 04/10 as part
of National Customer Services Week.
Complaints system configuration is complete with all enhancements/improvements
now in place. Final testing to be undertaken to enable sign off whereupon a
programme will be devised for system launch and training.

All income generation challenge meetings have been completed, initial
review/scoping of ideas has taken place, awaiting further development based on
the various streams i.e. commercial properties, fees and charges, affordable
housing, advertising. Car Parking income review to be undertaken with
recommendations for increases/new charging policy over the MTFP period.
A target has been included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy
2017/18 – 20/21.
Meeting to take place re 30 yr. asset management plan. Working group to be
established and new approach to be agreed. The improvement programme will be
produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18.

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 3: Q2 Trends 2017/18

HP Aim 3: Q2 Results 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 51

The Council is performing very strongly against its aim three performance measures with ‘on track’ performance across the board. 100% of
major planning applications have been determined on time. Footfall at the Pavilion Gardens and its trip advisor ratings are also on track this
quarter, albeit against reduced targets.

Celebrating Success:
At the close of Quarter Two the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 Planning appeals defended
 Pavilion Gardens footfall and trip advisor rating

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action

Status

Commentary – September
The project is ongoing and the concessions’ procurement specification is nearing
completion.

Support the development of Glossop Halls

HLF application submitted with result expected in late September/early October.
The partnership steering group has met and identified further areas of
development for the project. A meeting with market traders was planned for 23rd
August, a briefing for Glossop Councillors and media release about the detail of the
plans submitted to HLF. Glossopdale Trust are using the Town Hall sessions event to
highlight the plans and engage with the wider community.
(Note: HLF application was unsuccessful. The Council is using the feedback given by
the HLF to prepare a Development Plan).
Officers from HPBC and DCC have met with the Trust and the owner a few times to
discuss and agree a way forward. It is proposed to prepare a feasibility study and
for all parties to enter into a memorandum of understanding (MoU), setting out the
terms and scope of the study. Subject to the Building Preservation Trust agreeing to
this proposed way forward, a draft MoU will be circulated.
Corporate Plan Priorities and Annual Report findings shared with senior managers
at the June Managers Forum. This has kick started the benchmarking activities and
the Information Team have provided background data packs to facilitate process
benchmarking by Managers in conjunction with their Finance Business Partners.

Page 52

Market test the commercial operation of
the Pavilion Gardens, including a review
of the Tourist Information Centre and
Tourism Service
Together with partners work for the
delivery of the Buxton Crescent
development

Support the development of Torr Vale Mill

Undertake detailed process benchmarking
with high performing / low cost councils
with a view to identifying value for money
improvements for Planning application
processing
Implement the accelerated housing
delivery programme

The Crescent Trust is now operational. Work on the Pump Room has been
completed. The main contract work is ongoing but due to more extensive structural
problems, will be subject to contract extensions. 3 month delay.

BE Group Consultants appointed May 2017 to support Accelerated Housing
Delivery programme. Consultation with Exec AMT is ongoing regarding the
masterplans and delivery mechanism. Masterplans were presented to the Economy
and Growth Select Committee in September to update the members on progress so
far. All final reports will be submitted to the Council by mid November. Funding
discussions are on going with partner organisations and house builders.

Priority Action
Implement the accelerated business
growth and employment programme

Status

Commentary – September
Programme of Business support being delivered in partnership with D2N2 Growth
Hub. A series of events have been organised in partnership with the Growth Hub
including one providing guidance on ‘access to finance’ to businesses in Glossop
and a workshop on family succession & selling/buying a business in Buxton. Grant
support has been secured for High Peak businesses through Invest to Grow, D2EGF
and LEADER funding. Delivery of employment sites allocated in Local Plan is being
progressed in discussion with land owners, developers and local businesses.

Page 53

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment
HP Aim 4: Q2 Results 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 4: Q2 Trends 2017/18
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Page 54

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Performance has dipped against our aim four priorities in September. The Council is now off track for enforcement actions in relation to
enviro-crime, fixed penalty notice issued, missed bin collections and fly-tipping levels and associated follow up action.

Celebrating Success:
At the close of Quarter Two the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 Paper consumption
 Residual household waste levels and recycling rates (estimated)

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Work with ANSA and Cheshire East to
launch Alliance Environmental Services
Ltd, our new joint venture company, to
deliver waste, streets and grounds
maintenance services on behalf of the
Council in order to achieve improved
performance and value for money
outcomes.
Establish a developer open space
contributions plan

Status

Commentary – September
Alliance Environmental Services has been established and phase 1 (the transfer of
current Veolia contract to AES) is complete. A plan for phase 2 is being developed
with a meeting planned for late September, which will focus on vehicles and SMDC
waste.

Majority of S106 updates are on track.

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Areas for Improvement: September 2017 (Q2)
Target
2017/18

Q2 Result
2017

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

18 days

19.98 days

7 days

9.87 days

With the introduction of online forms, risk based
verification and the progress steps on the customer
portal the processes are being reviewed and the
target is expected to be met (September New
Claims 18.26 days / Changes 8.78 days).

10

15

Legal and Elections
Manager

100%

96.55%

28 out of 29 applications were completed within
timescale.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Time taken to process new
housing benefit claims

Aim 1: Fit for purpose
housing stock that meets
the needs of tenants

Head of Customer
Services

Time taken to process
housing benefit change of
circumstances
Households in temporary
accommodation

Page 58

RTB transactions
(applications) completed
within statutory timescales
(RTB2)

This includes tenants temporarily decanted from
their properties due to fire and a household waiting
for a habitual residence decision.

Average days sickness
absence per FTE

Aim 2:
A high performing and well
motivated workforce

OD &
Transformation
Manager

7 days

5.55 days

There have been a number of long term sickness
cases that have impacted the figure year to date.
However, all but 2 have now returned to work so
the result should even out as the year progresses.

% of responsive repairs for
which an appointment was
made and kept

Aim 2: More effective use
of Council assets

Head of Operational
Services

100%

99.35%

This PI is below target due to 18 out of 2776
appointments being missed year to date. In
September, only 3 appointments out of 393 were
missed.

12 days

13.34 days

This PI remains off track but has improved by 1.65
days since the end of Quarter 1 and is expected to
meet its target by year end.

28 days

31 days

Average time from request
to repair (DLO)

Average re-let times for
council homes

Head of Customer
Services

Average time excluding hard to let – 23.6 days.

Target
2017/18

Q2 Result
2017

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

0.86%

1.02%

Current Rent loss due to vacant stock - £166,731.43.
£150,829.40 of this figure is for properties on hold
(Marian Ct, Alma Square, Padfield Main Road, Torr
Top Street, Church View).

98.85%

94.65%

Only 0.04% behind trend. However, the target was
missed marginally in 2016/17 and therefore we will
continue to monitor this position with a view to
implementing action with the aim of improving
performance.

Value of sundry debt (over
60 days old)

5%
reduction

£267k

£10k DCC invoice & £6k HPBC invoice outstanding
which will be settled shortly.

Contracts register: contract
spend as % of exp budget

72%

71%

Democratic and
Community Services
Manager (newly
transferred from Env
Services)

a) 380 b) 5

a)218 b) 1

Head of Operational
Services

35.5

38.85

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

% Rent loss due to vacant
stock

Collection rates: Rent

Page 59

a) number of fly tips (exc sec
46 waste) b) number where
further enforcement action
taken
Missed bins per 100,000
collections (exc customer
error)

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Aim 4:
Provision of high quality
public amenities, clean
streets and environmental
health

Finance and
Procurement
Manager

There has been a targeted improvement during
quarter 2, there are a number of key priority areas
for supplies later in the year for the housing repairs
service, which will contribute to an increase in oncontract spend.
Further promotional work and new fly tipping
campaigns are planned to encourage responsible
waste disposal.

This PI remains off track but is a better result than
at this time last year (41.79). The number of missed
collections increased in September to 115 from 100
in August. It is still difficult to isolate cases where
customer fault is the cause of the missed bin due to
changes in the way service requests are reported.
The web forms will continue to be monitored in
order to further address this issue.

Measure of Success (PI)
Environmental Fixed Penalty
Notices issued
Number of enviro-crime
enforcements undertaken
(i.e. Abandoned Vehicles,
Duty of Care etc.)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead
Democratic and
Community Services
Manager (newly
transferred from Env
Services)

Target
2017/18

Q2 Result
2017

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

40

9

Combined enforcement and promotion in targeted
areas.

400

182

Targeted events and enforcements to be scheduled
over the next quarter.

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q2 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.
http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management

Page 60

Agenda Item 5

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
7th December 2017
TITLE:

Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19
to 2021/22

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2021/22)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

This report presents the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP). The MTFP presents the Council’s priorities in the context of the likely
resources available, providing a financial context to future decision-making.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Executive endorse and approve the updated Medium Term Financial
Plan (Appendix A).

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The medium term financial planning process provides the Council with the
opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance with local
priorities and against the backdrop of unprecedented public sector financial
constraint

3.2

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is updated in accordance with the
budget cycle. This version of the MTFP presents the Council’s finances over a
four-year period, namely 2018/19 to 2021/22. It sets the context for the
preparation of the 2018/19 budget which will need to be approved by the
Council in February 2018.

Page 61

3.3

The plan provides:





Details of local spending influences in the context of the Corporate Plan
A focus on the transformation programme and the consequential financial
implications, including the capital programme, housing revenue account
(HRA) review and efficiency & rationalisation plan
Updated inflation and interest assumptions using the latest forecasts and
the impact of any budgetary demand
An update on any national issues that will impact on the Council’s financial
position

3.4

The previous version of the MTFP was agreed by the Council in February
2017 when setting the budget for the current financial year. The plan identified
a £2.1 million budget shortfall over the four year period on the general fund.
This was primarily as a result of the reduction in Government funding
including the phasing out of Revenue Support Grant by 2019/20 and changes
to the New Homes Bonus funding system.

3.5

A new financial year (2021/22) has now been added to the plan, which
forecasts a small deficit. In addition, the overall financial assumptions have
been updated for the four years, and taking account of the projected 2017/18
surplus position as forecast in the Quarter Two report – this results in an
potential increase to the overall use of reserves by the end of 2021/22 of
£147,680. However, this is subject to progression of the current efficiency
programme and changes to financial assumptions going forward.

3.6

The plan has been updated to reflect reduced levels of business rates
retention - most significant in year 1 (2018/19) of the plan. This is a result of
reductions in net income from successful appeals and new reliefs awarded as
a result of the Chancellor’s spring budget which were not known at the time of
budget setting in February 2017. The reliefs are funded by S31 grants – this
creates a surplus on business rates retention in the current year on the
general fund (2017/18), but a collection fund deficit in year 1 (2018/19) of this
plan. Therefore it is appropriate to ring fence the surpluses being forecast in
2017/18 (as per the Quarter 2 report) to fund the distribution of the deficit
being created in year 1.

3.7

Achieving a balanced budget over the medium-term relies upon delivery of the
Council's approved efficiency & rationalisation strategy. A new efficiency
programme was presented and approved as part of the MTFP update in
February 2017 which focused on both reducing expenditure and increasing
income. The main areas of focus being:


Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with
proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract

Page 62






3.8

Current progression against the efficiency programme is positive, with the
2017/18 target likely to be achieved. However, the ability to limit the impact of
the reduction in central government support and achieve the overall 4 year
efficiency programme target is underpinned by the following:






3.9

commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services
across the alliance with High Peak. The individual projects will focus on
Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and
Facilities Management
Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in
order to allow for the necessary capital investment
Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic
growth based upon the established Local Plan.
Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources
of income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, nonstatutory services

The realisation of savings from the continued implementation of the
alternative delivery model for Waste, Streets and Parks via the transfer of
services to trading company Alliance Environment Services
A review of current leisure centre provision in order to reduce the
Council’s subsidy
The delivery of the Local Plan in order to achieve income generation from
sustained housing and economic growth
Reviewing fees and charges and identifying new sources of income
generation
Retained business rates through economic growth and the saving of the
levy payable to central government as a consequence of the Council's
membership of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool (as per the current
business rates system) and potential benefits if selected as a pilot County
for 100% business rates retention;

The MTFP also assumes an annual 1.9% increase in Council Tax over the life
of the plan.

3.10 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was showing a deficit position of
£770,430 by 2020/21 in February 2017 as a result of the 1% annual rent
reduction (over a four year period) announced by Government..
3.11 This latest MTFP update highlights a surplus of £469,620 for the HRA by the
end of 2021/22. The financial position has improved based on the inclusion of
the £1.2 million savings identified in the HRA financial improvement plan in
February 2017. The capital programme has also been maintained at £3.9
million throughout the life of the plan – however, this is subject to the results of
the stock condition surveys which may indicate an increased capital
requirement.

Page 63

3.12 The review of the HRA is continuing, with reports intially presented to the HRA
councillor working group. The recommendations in terms of savings and
income generation opportunities from the HRA review will be offset against
the financial improvement plan savings. An update to the overall 30 year HRA
business plan will be included in the February 2018 update.
3.13 As previously stated, this version of the MTFP sets the context for the
development of the 2018/19 Budget. Members will receive a further update of
the MTFP when considering the final budget proposals in February 2018. The
following actions will need to be completed to ensure that these proposals are
robust:








Complete review of the Council's transformation programme and produce
revised forecasts as required
Further development of the HRA Business Plan incorporating HRA review
recommendations
Development of detailed budget plans for 2018/19
Development of detailed proposals for fees and charges increases
Review progress of the efficiency programme
Complete review of reserves and balances
Continue to monitor the ongoing issues arising from the Autumn budget,
retention of business rates and the associated financial implications for the
Council

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this
report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider at this stage. Options will be need to be
developed in order to close the financial deficits highlighted in this updated
plan.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and
Diversity policies.
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

Page 64

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None.

16.6

6.7

Sustainability
None.
External Consultation
The Council’s budget plans are the subject of an annual public consultation
exercise. Full details are contained within the plan

Risk A Risk Assessment
6.8
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Buxton Town Hall

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement
Manager
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Keith Pointon
Principal Finance Officer
(Financial Planning)
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2018/19 to 2021/22

November 2017

Page 67

INDEX
1

Introduction

2

Strategic Priorities

3

Current Spending Levels

4

Transformation Programme
4.1
Introduction
4.2
Capital Programme
4.3
Housing Revenue Account Review
4.4
Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
4.5
Member Priority Projects

5

Financial Forecasts
5.1
Interest Rates
5.2
Inflationary Projections
5.3
Budgetary Demand
5.4
Budget Growth
5.5
Pensions
5.6
HRA - Other Operating Expenditure

6

Funding & Income Generation
6.1
Council Tax
6.2
Business Rates Retention
6.3
Collection Fund
6.4
Income from Government Grants
6.5
Fees & Charges

7

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

8

MTFP Revenue Position
8.1
General Fund Revenue Position
8.2
HRA Revenue Position

9

Consultation

Annex A
Annex B
Annex C
Annex D

Proposed Capital Programme
Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme
MTFP Principal Risks
Proposed Revenue Budget (General Fund & HRA)

Page 68

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next
4 years.

1.2.

The medium-term financial planning process establishes how available
resources will be allocated to services in line with the Council’s priorities which
have been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and
other stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs
of residents over the long term.

1.3.

The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the
MTFP builds on the existing plan and updates assumptions to reflect known
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and
capital financial projections over the four years 2018/19 to 2021/22. It also
includes an assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer-term financial
issues which have the potential to impact on the Council.

1.4.

The Council will demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
application of its resources. Value for Money (VFM) is maximised when there is
an optimum balance between economy, efficiency and effectiveness.




Economy: the price the Council pays for providing its services
Efficiency: how much the Council gets out of what’s put in (productivity)
Effectiveness: value of the impact achieved (quantitative or qualitative)

2.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

2.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by
members of the Council.

2.2.

Following the elections in May 2015, there was a fundamental review of the
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2015-2019 (up to the end of the current
political administration).

2.3.

The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulates the aims,
objectives and priority actions, which the Council is working to achieve over this
period. Its delivery is measured through the Performance Framework, which
has at its centre the three pillars of value for money - efficiency, economy and
effectiveness. It in effect determines the Council’s commitments in the delivery
of services and community leadership to the citizens of High Peak.

Page 69

2.4.

The Council’s Corporate Plan has been developed after taking into account the
views and aspirations of High Peak citizens and having come to a clear
understanding of empirical evidence. The plan has taken due recognition of the
national and regional policy framework. It has taken on board learning from the
progress made by the Council and has benefitted from input from Members at a
priority setting event which was held in July 2015.

2.5.

The opportunity has now been taken, at the mid-point of the current
administration, to reflect on the progress made during the first two years of the
Plan and to reiterate the Council’s commitment to the remaining objectives as
well as adding any new areas of priority that have emerged since the Plan was
first developed.

2.6.

The Council’s vision is expressed as:
“Delivering excellent services to High Peak residents and demonstrating value
for money”
This vision is articulated further by four aims:





2.7.

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and
work
Meet financial challenges & provide value for money
Support economic development & regeneration
Protect and improve the environment

These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are
summarised below:
Aim

1

Help create a safer and
healthier environment
for our residents to live
and work







2

Meet its financial
challenges and provide
value for money





3

Support economic
development and
regeneration






Objectives
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of
tenants
Effective support of community safety arrangements
Provision of high quality leisure facilities
Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure
value for money
Ensure our services are easily available to all our
residents in the appropriate channels and provided ‘right
first time’
A high performing and highly motivated workforce
More effective use of Council assets
Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
Promote tourism
High quality development and building control with an
‘open for business approach’

Page 70

Aim
4




Protect and improve
the environment




2.8.

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area.
In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and
aspirations of citizens. The priorities for the Council’s influencing role will be
focused in the following areas:






2.9.

Objectives
Effective recycling and waste management
Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets
and environmental health
Provision of quality parks and open spaces
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of
residents, businesses and visitors

Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including: The
Crescent and Torr Vale Mill
Press for more regular and faster rail links and road infrastructure
Provision of accessible health and social care
Support the police in dealing with anti social behaviour
Work with partners to bring additional funding into the Borough

The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the
development of performance targets and key actions. A significant proportion
of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:
Aim

Priority Outcomes

1

Help create a safer and
healthier environment for our
residents to live and work

2

Meet financial challenges and
provide value for money




Good quality social housing provision
Improved health



Balanced and sustainable medium
term financial position
Council services provide value for
money
High level of resident and customer
satisfaction




3

4

Support economic
development and
regeneration
Protect and improve the
environment






Sustainable towns and rural
communities
Increased economic growth
High recycling rates
Quality parks and open spaces and
clean streets

2.10. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District
Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of
efficiency and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the
implementation and transformation of a joint management structure and
services, consequently realising significant efficiency savings.

Page 71

2.11. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements
through collaboration with its Alliance partner.
3.

CURRENT SPENDING LEVELS

3.1.

The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of
spending and the approved capital expenditure commitments.
General Fund Revenue Budget

3.2.

The Council’s current year (2017/18) General Fund budget can be summarised
as follows:
Income and Expenditure
Employees

12,701,150

Premises

4,121,350

Transport

833,090

Supplies & Services

9,488,650

Benefits

82,460

Borrowing

1,425,230

Parish Grant
Financing Costs

51,320
191,000

Unachieved Effciencies (2014 -2017 plan)

431,200

Total Expenditure

29,325,450

Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts

(11,600,320)
(64,720)

Capital Recharges

3.3.

2017/18
Budget
£

(231,240)

HRA Recharges

(6,633,300)

Net Expenditure

10,795,870

The net expenditure is financed as follows:
Financing
Council Tax

2017/18
Budget
£
(5,431,520)

Government Funding

(580,100)

New Homes Bonus

(725,060)

Business Rates Retention

(3,050,510)

Collection Fund Deficit

(145,110)

Contribution to / (from) Reserves & Balances
Efficiency Requirement

(553,570)
(310,000)

Total Financing

(10,795,870)

Page 72

Housing Revenue Account Budget
3.4.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ‘ring-fenced’ account that ensures
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded
from the income generated by rents and other related sources.

3.5.

The Council’s current year (2017/18) Housing Revenue Account budget can be
summarised as follows:
2017/18
Budget

Budget Heading

£
Repairs & Maintenance

3,932,800
2,695,930
115,320
1,383,590
1,550,000
3,381,630
1,997,000

Supervision & Management
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment Charges
Interest & Debt Management Charges
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme
Total Expenditure

15,056,270

Dwellings Rents

(14,495,540)

Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income

(617,730)

Total Income

(15,113,270)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year

(57,000)

General Fund Capital Budget
3.6.

The medium-term projection for General Fund capital commitments approved
by Council in February 2017 is detailed below:

Service Area

2016/17

201718

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

New Housing Schemes

241,960

142,000

301,050

454,000

454,000

1,593,010

Asset Management Plan

580,300

4,953,780

2,079,630

1,130,000

455,000

9,198,710

Housing Grants

463,140

414,700

389,000

389,000

389,000

2,044,840

ICT Strategy

318,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

41,520

509,520

431,230
2,034,630

304,130
5,864,610

45,000
2,864,680

45,000
2,068,000

45,000
1,384,520

870,360
14,216,440

569,180

460,700

389,000

389,000

389,000

2,196,880

642,000

491,050

1,264,000

734,000

3,131,050

Other Schemes
Total Programme
Financed by:
External Contributions
Capital Receipts

-

Capital Reserve

-

S106 Planning Obligations
Borrowing
Total Financing

-

308,080

10,000

1,157,370
2,034,630

4,751,910
5,864,610

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,984,630
2,864,680

415,000
2,068,000

261,520
1,384,520

Page 73

318,080
8,570,430
14,216,440

Housing Revenue Account Capital Budget
3.7.

The medium-term projection for Housing Revenue Account
commitments approved by Council in February 2017 was as follows:
2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Responsive Works
Aids & Adaptations
New Build
Commissioning Costs
Total Programme

£
2,908,300
445,000
435,670
194,000
155,000
4,137,970

£
3,036,000
395,000
350,000
155,000
3,936,000

£
3,036,000
395,000
350,000
155,000
3,936,000

HRA Contribution
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Receipts
Capital Investment Fund
Total Financing

1,580,970
1,550,000
509,000
498,000
4,137,970

1,997,000
1,550,000
389,000
3,936,000

2,078,640
1,550,000
307,360
3,936,000

Planned Maintenance

capital

2020/21

Total

£
3,036,000
395,000
350,000
155,000
3,936,000

£
3,036,000
395,000
350,000
155,000
3,936,000

15,052,300
2,025,000
1,835,670
194,000
775,000
19,881,970

2,325,000
1,550,000
61,000
3,936,000

2,386,000
1,550,000
3,936,000

10,367,610
7,750,000
1,266,360
498,000
19,881,970

£

4.

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

4.1.

Introduction

4.1.1.

The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects
which meet the strategic priorities of the Authority and have significant
financial implications, including:





The capital programme
Housing Revenue Account review
The efficiency and rationalisation strategy
Member priority projects

4.1.2.

The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by a
Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key
Corporate Service Managers and officers. A director is allocated as ‘project
executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project.

4.1.3.

The progress and current financial projections of the transformation
programme is explored below along with any potential revenue
consequences. Any further work required to identify the financial implications
of the programme are discussed and will feed into the 2018/19 budget setting
process.

Page 74

4.2.

General Fund Capital Programme

4.2.1.

The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February
2017 has been reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position
in terms of capital projections to 31st March 2022.

4.2.2.

The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major schemes, are
summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in Annex A.

Service Area

2017/18
£
142,000
3,632,070
455,240
104,310
371,840
4,705,460

2018/19
£
301,050
2,207,730
421,000
9,640
279,000
3,218,420

2019/20
£
597,000
2,512,640
421,000
9,640
245,000
3,785,280

2020/21
£
340,000
455,000
421,000
9,640
45,000
1,270,640

2021/22
£
340,000
2,197,800
421,000
9,640
45,000
3,013,440

Total
£
1,720,050
11,005,240
2,139,240
142,870
985,840
15,993,240

520,720
642,000
10,000
3,532,740

421,000
491,050
2,306,370

421,000
1,407,000
1,957,280

421,000
620,000
229,640

421,000
340,000
2,252,440

2,204,720
3,500,050
10,000
10,278,470

Total Financing
4,705,460 3,218,420 3,785,280 1,270,640
*includes £290,000 provision for new schemes as detailed in 4.2.38

3,013,440

15,993,240

Housing
Asset Management
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Other Schemes*
Total Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
S106 Planning
Borrowing

4.2.3.

The capital projections above include the carry forward of £258,650 capital
budgets from 2016/17 as approved by Members.
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

4.2.4.

The Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme approved by members in
February 2017 is largely unchanged at this stage with further work to be
undertaken prior to February 2018. However, an additional year has been
added based on the current HRA business plan and the allocation of capital
receipts has been updated.

Page 75

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

Repairs Team Capital works
Commissioning Costs
Total Programme

£
3,597,200
395,000
155,000
4,147,200

£
3,441,000
395,000
100,000
3,936,000

£
3,441,000
395,000
100,000
3,936,000

£
3,441,000
395,000
100,000
3,936,000

3,441,000
395,000
100,000
3,969,000

17,361,200
1,975,000
555,000
19,891,200

Major Repairs Reserve
HRA Contribution
Capital Receipts
Total Financing

2,099,030
1,659,170
389,000
4,147,200

2,099,030
1,529,610
307,360
3,936,000

2,099,030
1,775,970
61,000
3,936,000

2,099,030
1,836,970
3,936,000

2,099,030
1,836,970
3,936,000

10,495,150
8,638,690
757,360
19,891,200

Asset Management works

4.2.5.

2020/21

2021/22

Total
£

The capital projections above include an approved £211,200 carry forward of
unused budget from the 2016/17 programme to 2017/18.
Asset Management Plan (AMP) – General Fund

4.2.6.

It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the
ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable. This
is becoming increasingly difficult due to the age of a number of the Council’s
key buildings and the shrinking amount of financial resources available to
support service delivery.

4.2.7.

A stock condition survey has been undertaken on the Council’s property
assets. A report detailing the outcomes and actions emerging was presented
to the Executive in July 2016. This includes the potential capital and revenue
financial implications of maintaining the Council’s current property assets over
a 30-year period. This was reviewed and updated in February 2017 to take
account of any changes and updates to stock information since July 2016, and
has subsequently been reviewed again and presented to the Asset
Management working group in October.

4.2.8.

The surveys have confirmed that a number of the Council’s operational assets
are dated in appearance, have structural issues or urgent health and safety
work requirements or the electrical and mechanical infrastructure require
updating. The investment required to ensure the assets remain fit for purpose
is significant over the 30 year period and would consequently impact on future
revenue budgets.

4.2.9.

Therefore, the report discusses the options to either reduce the amount of
capital expenditure or reduce the impact on revenue of the necessary capital
spending:




Asset rationalisation
Shared use of assets
Reduction in specification and functionality

Page 76





Generate additional capital receipts
Identify grants to support investment
Generate additional revenue from asset holdings

4.2.10. Additionally, it also recommended the review of a number of areas as detailed
below, with the progress made to date (as reported to the Asset Management
working group in October 2017):Area of Review
Assess and confirm the
approach that provides for the
early
year
investments
(including
the
proposed
strategy) for each of the key
buildings

-

-

Review
the
public
convenience and car park
provision with a view to
disposal of assets that are
surplus to requirements

Progress to date
The current level of essential works are included within the
30 year programme as detailed above.
This includes significant upfront investment in key public
buildings specifically:- Buxton Town Hall (£1.4m allocated in MTFP
timeframe)– options are currently being assessed into
alternative usage for this building which aims to reduce the
investment required and realise revenue savings
- Pavilion Gardens (£3.3m allocated in MTFP timeframe)
– essential works relating to the Octagon ring beam are
currently underway. Options for alternative delivery of the
Pavilion Gardens facility in order to reduce the revenue
subsidy are currently being explored.
- Glossop Halls (£2m allocated in MTFP timeframe) – The
£2m represents the Council’s contribution to the
restoration and conversion of the Market Hall, Town Hall
and Municipal Buildings. A £4.8m bid has been submitted
to the Heritage Lottery Fund to fund the remainder of the
project - the outcome of which will determine the scale of
the project achievable.
The working group has to date agreed proposals to
progress emergency building works which present
significant hazards and the deferral of car parks works to
focus on other priorities (with the exception of Sylvan car
park which required early investment). However, the
group expressed the wishes for a programme of
maintenance/investment to be established as soon as
possible.
Additionally, public convenience provision has been
reviewed and a strategy agreed to maintain current
standards in recently refurbished locations with a phased
scheme of improvements at public conveniences which
require investment.

Review

the

Leisure

There are 4 public conveniences proposed for
decommission and disposal. These assets do not generate
revenue expenditure as they are currently closed and
therefore are not in the work plan for 2017 due to other
priorities. The disposal of these 4 assets will be reviewed
in 2018 and outcome built into the AMP and MTFP
asset There is significant capital investment required in Leisure

Page 77

portfolio in the context of the Centre assets over the 30 year period – £7.9m (26% of
expiry of the existing leisure overall programme spend) which is based on the long
management
term fit for purpose estimated costs.
The current leisure centre operational contract with Places
for People expires in 2019 – which coincides with the
expiry of the operational contract at Staffordshire
Moorlands D.C. Therefore providing the option to
potentially have a joint arrangement in place. A review of
leisure centre provision will be taking place during 2018,
which may in turn result in an alternative delivery model –
which then reduces the overall investment requirements
and/or reduces the overall revenue subsidy.
Review the operational depot The AMP includes £0.8m capital investment required in
asset portfolio in the context operational depots over the 30 year period – which is
of the expiry of the waste based on the long term fit for purpose estimated costs.
collection contract
As part of the new operational arrangements in place with
Alliance Environment Services for Waste Collection, and
planned transfer of Streets Scene and Grounds
Maintenance (replicated at Staffordshire Moorlands D.C.),
an operational depot review will be undertaken collectively.
This will ensure facilities are fit-for-purpose, efficiency
located and consequently rationalise the facilities. This is
a longer-term project to progress once all relevant services
have transferred.
Review the Council’s strategic There has been a full review completed. The sites
land holdings with a view to identified for development potential will be issued as part
developing options to either of the environmental estate review to determine feasibility
generate additional capital of sites and realisation value. The review is to be
receipts or opportunities to completed April 2018.
generate ongoing financial
returns.
4.2.11. The current capital programme costs of the AMP include approved carry
forwards from 2016/17, projected spend in 2017/18, revised estimates for
2018/19-2020/21 and the additional estimated costs of maintaining the asset
portfolio in 2021/22. The current programme includes significant early
investment in key public buildings: Pavilion Gardens, Buxton Town Hall and
Glossop Halls.
4.2.12. Options are currently being assessed for an alternative usage for Buxton
Town Hall (and options for alternative Council accommodation arrangements
within the town) which aims to reduce the investment required and realise
savings.
4.2.13. A second bid is being prepared for external funding towards the Glossop Halls
renovation project, however, it is proposed that roofing works are progressed
in the meantime utilising the current £2million provision in the capital
programme.

Page 78

4.2.14. The most significant capital expenditure over the 4 year period of the MTFP is
in relation to Pavilion Gardens. The phase 1 project to undertake works
required to the Octagon building is currently progressing. The resultant
revenue implications of borrowing for this scheme have been calculated and a
programme of cost saving measures at the Pavilion Gardens has been
identified with the aim of covering these additional costs. Alternative delivery
options for the facility are also being explored in order to reduce the overall
subsidy provided. .
4.2.15. The table below illustrates the capital investment requirements on the
Council’s property portfolio and revenue consequences (cost of borrowing)
over a 30 year period as reported in July 2016:-

HPBC - Capital Investment Required

2016-17 2019-20
(MTFP)

Public Buildings

8,450,983

6,188,951

14,639,934

Car Parks

120,000

3,754,462

3,874,462

Public Conveniences

123,400

949,300

1,072,700

Waterways & Infrastructure Assets

671,360

1,230,000

1,901,360

45,000

6,825,129

6,870,129

144,700

1,301,785

1,446,485

9,555,443

20,249,627

29,805,070

295,619

592,838

888,457

Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
TOTAL
Revenue Consequences

2020-21 2045-46 (26
Years)

TOTAL

4.2.16. The AMP and consequent financial implications were then updated within the
Budget & MTFP in February 2017 to take account of any more up-to-date
asset data and the forecast outturn position in 2016/17.
4.2.17. The table below reflects the updated capital investment requirements as at
February 2017 which had increased by £300,200 over the 30 years which
marginally increased the revenue consequences:-

Page 79

HPBC AMP Capital Investment &
Revenue Consequence

Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
TOTAL

2016-17
(current
year
forecast)
£
558,000
22,300
580,300

2017-18 –
2020-21
(MTFP)

2021-22 –
2045-46
(25 years)

£
7,024,650
120,000
123,400
1,053,310
245,000
52,050
8,618,410

£
6,059,078
3,754,462
949,300
1,105,000
7,736,945
1,301,785
20,906,570

TOTAL
£
13,641,728
3,874,462
1,072,700
2,180,610
7,981,945
1,353,835
30,105,280

4.2.18. This AMP was again updated and presented to the Asset Management
Working Group in October 2017 – taking into account the 2016/17 actual
outturn position, further up-to-date asset data and any actions already taken
as part of the asset review. The figures reported in October 2017, and
included in this iteration of the MTFP are provided below:HPBC AMP Capital
Investment & Revenue
Consequence

2016-17
(Actuals)
£

MTFP*
2018-19 –
2021/22
2020-21
£
(MTFP)
£

2017-18
(forecast)
£

2022-23 –
2045-46 (24
years)
£

TOTAL
£

339,450

3,190,690

4,052,510

158,030

5,901,048

13,641,728

Car Parks

-

90,000

30,000

121,000

3,633,462

3,874,462

Public Conveniences
Waterways &
Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots
and
Parks
Buildings

-

-

123,400

127,600

821,700

1,072,700

51,280

215,330

809,000

100,000

1,005,000

2,180,610

540

100,000

144,460

1,691,170

6,045,775

7,981,945

-

36,050

16,000

-

1,301,785

1,353,835

391,270

3,632,070

5,175,370

2,197,800

18,708,770

30,105,280

-

50,030

238,250

21,300

524,230

833,810

Public Buildings

TOTAL
Revenue
Consequences

*The current MTFP capital programme costs of the AMP include approved carry forwards from 2016/17, projected
spend in 2017/18, revised estimates for 2018/19-2020/21 and the additional estimated costs of maintaining the
asset portfolio in 2021/22.

4.2.19. The overall 30 year programme remains consistent with the programme
reported when setting the Budget and MTFP in February 2017. However,
there has been some re-profiling of expenditure between financial years.
4.2.20. Although the programme has increased by £300,210 since the July 2016
report, the revenue consequences have marginally reduced over the 30 years
in line with the latest interest rate forecasts provided by the Council’s treasury
management advisors.

Page 80

4.2.21. The revenue consequences remain significant and are front loaded – 50% of
the £833,810 being incurred by 2024/25 (year 9 of 30) and therefore action is
required in order to reduce the impact on the revenue budget.
4.2.22. Any positive revenue implications of the asset management plan, for example,
reduced annual maintenance and utility costs due to fewer and/or more
efficient buildings and income receipts from shared accommodation partners
will be taken towards the efficiency programme.
Asset Management Plan (AMP) - Housing
4.2.23. The Executive agreed to complete a full condition survey on the Council’s
portfolio of housing properties by March 2019. The last stock condition survey
was undertaken in 2012 and was based on a 20% sample of properties. It is
recognised that reliable and up-to-date stock condition data is critical for
investment planning and consequently it was agreed to undertake a phased
prioritised approach to assessing the condition of the stock to validate the data
currently held. This will be based on property type and phased in the following
way:
 Phase 1 – Non Traditional properties
 Phase 2 – Sheltered Accommodation
 Phase 3 – Large town concentrations of stock
 Phase 4 – Rural Stock
4.2.24. Stock condition requirements will then be considered in line with the
affordability of the HRA Business Plan. The results of the stock condition
surveys will start to fully emerge in early 2018, which will then need to be
validated and assessed to understand the financial implications. Therefore,
the full results will most likely feed into the 2019/20-2022/23 MTFP November
update.
4.2.25. The HRA capital programme proposed within this update is based on current
stock condition information held. The 2018/19 programme has been reviewed
using existing internal data and prioritising schemes, consequently
maintaining the overall programme at £3.9m per annum.

Buxton Crescent
4.2.26. The Buxton Crescent Hotel and Thermal Spa construction stage is
progressing. The smaller contract to refurbish the Pump Room reached
practical completion in June. This will eventually become the hub for the
proposed visitor centre.
4.2.27. The main contract to convert the Crescent and the Natural Baths into the hotel
and spa is progressing well with a programmed completion in 2019.

Page 81

4.2.28. Funding arrangements are in place for the project. It is, however, still
necessary to identify the potential financial risks to the Council if the project
failed to complete. The corresponding financial risks relate to mothballing
costs and ongoing maintenance requirements of the building over a 5-year
period (the estimated time to end the current project, procure a new partner,
design and develop to the point of starting on site). Estimated costs are shown
below:
HPBC Liability
Cost over 5
years
£

Costs

Mothballing costs (security, insurance, utilities)
Maintenance Costs
TOTAL

257,500
1,600,000
1,857,500

4.2.29. The above costs are not included in the MTFP, but flagged as a risk.
Housing Grants
4.2.30. The Borough Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants,
Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 for the mandatory Disabled Facilities
Grant and this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All
eligible applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major
adaptations to their properties. The funding for these adaptations has
previously been given directly to the Council but from 2015/16, the funding
was incorporated into the Better Care Fund (BCF) and paid to the County
Council.
4.2.31. The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care
provision and covers the whole range of services including public health,
social care services and clinical commissioning groups.
4.2.32. The mechanism for the payment of funds from the fund holder to the Borough
Council year on year is now governed through the BCF Commissioning
Group, which makes the award based on the newly developed Assurance
Plans submitted annually by each Council. The Plans outline how the
allocated budget will be spent; including any discretionary or innovative
schemes agreed between the Councils and the County Council and identifies
the monitoring programme. The Plan requires a quarterly progress update
submission to the Commissioning Group, and these updates will inform the
discussion around the subsequent year’s allocation.
4.2.33. Currently, demand for mandatory funding at High Peak exceeds the value of
the funding awarded, so provided spend is in line with commitment through
the year, it is unlikely that the funding will be reduced. It may be, however,
that High Peak will need to consider investing funds at a local level in future
years, over and above the allocation for mandatory grants, should the level of
demand continue to increase and if new discretionary or innovative schemes
are to be funded.

Page 82

ICT Strategy
4.2.34. The framework for the existing 3 year ICT Strategy was established in
2014/15. The key drivers of which are to support delivery of the Efficiency and
Rationalisation Plan, provide the infrastructure to support joint working,
support new ways of working and improve access to services for our
customers. The Strategy is currently being reviewed and refreshed to take
account of work undertaken to date and priorities going forward.
4.2.35. The aim of the current Strategy is to reduce the number of applications and
software and consequently pressure on server space. The capital provision for
this project was reprofiled to account for the acceleration of the
infrastratucture and Microsoft compliancy phase of the project resulting in
higher than originally anticipated expenditure in 2016/17 and forecast spend in
2017/18.
4.2.36. Capital investment is required to establish the infrastructure required to meet
the key drivers. This in turn will identify the revenue consequences of capital
purchases – increased costs including maintenance, updates and annual
licence purchases, offset by savings resulting from better usage and
consolidation of the Council's suite of systems.
New Capital Schemes
4.2.37. There are a number of new schemes which the Council is currently assessing
the business case for to determine the cost of progressing each scheme. For
this MTFP update, an additional provision of £290,000 has been included to
account for the following schemes:-

Glossop Cemetery

A £200,000 provision has been included in the capital programme in 2019/20
for the extension to Glossop cemetery which will cover the cost of construction
and applicable civil engineer fees/environmental costs. Prior to construction
ground water testing may need to be undertaken for a period of 12 months.
-

Leisure Centre – pool dosing systems

There is a requirement to upgrade the dosing systems to improve pool water
quality at Buxton, Glossop and New Mills leisure centres, with costs estimated
at £90,000
-

Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme

It is likely that there will be costs incurred associated in delivering the
Council’s accelerated housing programme going forward. However, these are
still to be assessed (and may be revenue costs rather than capital costs),
therefore no provision is included in the capital programme at this stage.

Page 83

Funding the Capital Programme
4.2.38. The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include
external grants and contributions from third parties, comprising of Government
and lottery funding streams; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the
asset management plan and sale of council dwellings; earmarked revenue
reserves and a planned annual contribution from the Housing Revenue
Account to finance construction of and improvements to council dwellings.
4.2.39. Borrowing is undertaken to fund the shortfall after the other capital resources
have been used. The current programme includes estimates of external
funding of £2.215m towards General Fund projects; capital receipts of
£4.257m (£3.500m General Fund + £0.757m HRA); Housing Revenue
Reserves of £3.758m are forecast to be applied in 2017/18 and a further
£15.375million of Housing Revenue Reserves over the following four years
(subject to review – see 4.3). Borrowing is the main funding option for the
General Fund programme at £10.278m. The Treasury Management Strategy
then considers whether this is funded externally or internally - both options
have a consequence on revenue either through reduced investment income or
increased external interest liability as highlighted in the table below.
4.2.40. The capital receipts applied to the HRA include the one-for-one right-to-buy
element used to fund capital expenditure on new housing properties. Under
Government guidelines, these receipts can only represent 30% of overall
expenditure, with a further 70% being required to be allocated. The current
strategy is to fund this via a third party, i.e. a social housing landlord or
developer, with the third party organisation providing the additional 70%
expenditure.
4.2.41. The HRA can also apply capital receipts which are not subject to the same
restrictions to the overall capital programme. Therefore these un-ring-fenced
receipts have been applied to the overall HRA capital programme as a source
of funding.
4.2.42. There remains a balance of £84,000 within the general fund earmarked
reserve established specifically to fund capital projects. It is proposed to use
this fund where an options appraisal on the acquisition of vehicles, plant and
equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most financially viable
option is to outright purchase. Similarly, an increase in the contribution to
capital is proposed where it is best value to do so for the HRA.

Page 84

Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme
4.2.43. The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue
consequences as follows:
Revenue Consequences

Borrowing Costs

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

£

£

£

2021/22

128,440

157,950

189,290

174,990

-

-

-

-

128,440

157,950

189,290

174,990

HRA contribution to Capital*

(467,390)

246,360

61,000

-

Borrowing Costs
Housing Revenue Account

(467,390)

246,360

61,000

-

Total

(338,950)

404,310

250,290

174,990

Other (Income)/Expenditure
General Fund

*dependent on stock condition survey results

4.3.

Housing Revenue Account review
Background

4.3.1.

In 2014, the Council made a commitment in its Corporate Plan to undertake a
fundamental review of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) business plan.

4.3.2.

The business plan is being developed in the context of significant financial
constraints. In 2015, government announced far reaching legislative and
financial changes for the social housing sector, which have had significant
implications for the Council and in particular a negative financial impact on the
HRA. The financial impact of these changes, the most significant being the 1%
rent reduction imposed over 4 financial years, is approximately £2.2 million by
2020/21.
HRA Business Plan Sub-Committee

4.3.3.

The development of the business plan is being undertaken through a subcommittee established by the Corporate Select Committee. The work
commenced in June 2016 and is expected to result in an updated sustainable
business plan in February 2018 (in line with the Budget report).

4.3.4.

Given the significance of the financial position there has been an early focus
on areas where reductions in financial provisions in the HRA can be made or
additional income can be generated in order to ensure that the longer term
financial position can be brought into balance.

4.3.5.

The remaining sub-committee review schedule and the actions from each
report is summarised in the table below:

Page 85

Month
August 2017

Agenda Item
Revised Tenancy Agreement

18th
October
2017

Radon





Housing Systems



Void Policy



Rent & Service Charge Policy and
Leaseholder Charges



1st
November
2017






December
2017

HRA Unoccupied Properties
Review
Tenant Engagement



Housing Repairs Arrangements





Financing Transactions



Neighbourhood Policies Suite



Housing Needs Report



Stock Condition Survey






January
2018

February
2018

Capital Programme




Sheltered Housing Delivery






DRAFT HRA BUSINESS PLAN

Action
Consider amendments
Approve for consultation
Recommended approach for management
of radon risk in dwellings
Recommendations for systems
rationalisation and improvement
Outcomes and recommendations from 90
day challenge
Policy and recommendations including
details of impact on income levels and
charges
Recharging Proposals
Approve draft for consultation amd
subsequent implementation
Including garage rent policy
Proposals for revised approach to charging
and communication with Leaseholders
Consideration of bringing back into use a
number of long term vacant properties
Round table discussion with Linda Levin re
Tenant Engagement Framework
Review of current arrangements
Identification / consideration of alternatives
Recommendations for future service
provision
Decision on debt repayment and other
financial implications
Summary of policies, amendments and
Impacts
Context and data including borough wide
current supply and demand
Progress update and emerging findings for
non traditional and sheltered stock
Timeline for completion & reporting/next
steps
Summary of 2017/18 projected outturn
Proposals to feed into HRA Business Plan /
Medium Term Financial Plan
Recommendations for Sheltered housing
Approach to consultation
Carelink implications
Incorporating information from all items as
appropriate

Financial Position
4.3.6.

The MTFP summarises the latest financial forecasts for the HRA Business
Plan and provides a detailed summary of the financial position from 2018/19
to 2021/22.

Page 86

4.3.7.

The original forecast 4-year deficit upon the announcement of the social
sector rent reduction was some £2.2 million, which had been reduced to
£770,430 (taking into account savings already achieved) by the end of
2020/21 as part of the MTFP presented in February 2017.

4.3.8.

The HRA Financial Improvement Plan - which was presented alongside the
MTFP in February 2017 – identified a further £1.2m in savings to be achieved
over a four year period (see Annex B) The anticipated timing of the realisation
of savings and further detail are shown within section 4.4.

4.3.9.

Building in the £1.2 million savings plan, the HRA now shows a surplus
position of £469,620 by 2021/22. This also assumes a continuation of an
annual capital programme of £3.9million.

4.3.10. The 30-year HRA business plan is based upon capital expenditure that is
derived from the existing stock condition information. The plan also currently
makes provision to repay outstanding debt at £1.2 million per annum –
although alternative options have been presented to the HRA working group
and further supporting information is being collated for review and discussion
at the working group scheduled for December.
4.3.11. However, the capital programme requirements will not be fully understood
until the stock condition surveys have been completed. Therefore, there may
be a requirement to increase the capital programme budget dependent on this
information – at which point the financial impact will need to be assessed and
future options considered.
4.3.12. The 30 year business plan will be updated at part of the February 2018
Budget and MTFP report with the inclusion of any information coming out of
the stock condition surveys.
4.4.

Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme
General Fund Efficiency Programme

4.4.1.

The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by
Members in February 2017, which identified a programme of £2.1 million
(including £431,200 in unachieved efficiencies from the previous efficiency
programme) in savings to be made over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21.

4.4.2.

The new Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both
reducing expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e.
not reliant on direct government funding such as revenue support grant.

4.4.3.

The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

Page 87

4.4.4.

It is intended that there will be five areas of focus: Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with
proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services
across the alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands. The individual projects
will focus on Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure
Management and Facilities Management
 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order
to allow for the necessary capital investment
 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic
growth based upon the established Local Plan.
 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, nonstatutory services

4.4.5.

The below table summarises the financial savings requirements and profile for
achievement (ANNEX B provides more detail of the savings plan):General Fund Efficiency
Strategy
Major Procurements
Asset Management
Growth
Income Generation
Rationalisation
TOTAL

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

£

100,000
90,000
120,000
310,000

275,000
30,000
40,000
190,000
46,000
581,000

100,000
200,000
40,000
70,000
20,000
430,000

500,000
190,000
120,000
810,000

975,000
230,000
270,000
470,000
186,000
2,131,000

4.4.6.

To date, £194,150 in savings have been realised against the 2017/18
efficiency target. A review will be undertaken in preparation for the February
2018 update to assess if any reprofiling needs to be undertaken, but at this
stage, progress is good and it is anticipated that the 2017/18 efficiency target
will be achieved.

4.4.7.

However, continued progression against the efficiency programme is
dependent on achieving significant savings as a result of the alternative
delivery model for Waste, Streets and Parks via the transfer of services to
trading company Alliance Environment Services, as well as a review of leisure
provision. There are also significant income generation targets focusing on
housing and economic growth as a result of implementing the Local Plan.

Page 88

4.4.8.

A further exercise reviewing the revenue underspends of recent years will also
take place during the 2018/19 budget setting process. The review will identify
areas, which have consistently underspent against the base budget, with a
view to removing the excess provision. Any budget adjustments will be used
to support the Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy.
HRA Efficiency Programme

4.4.9.

When setting the budget in February 2017, the HRA was in a deficit position of
£770,430 by the end of 2020/21 due to the consequences of the four year 1%
rent reduction.

4.4.10. Therefore, a HRA Financial Improvement Plan was approved as part of the
MTFP which identified potential savings from a number of sources to be
achieved over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21.
4.4.11. A HRA Review Progress report was presented to the HRA working group in
April 2017 which further developed and provided more detail on the savings
programme and likely profiling for the realisation of savings:-

HRA Review Focus

Savings Description
2017/18

Capital Financing

Rental Income –
introduction of new
rent policy

Staffing structures –
service review
process

Initial reduction in voluntary repayment of debt
(currently £1.25 million per annum) – to be
benchmarked – maximum annual reduction
*Further reduction dependent on stock
condition survey information – i.e. if an increase
in capital expenditure is required, reduction in
MRP could offset
New tenancies – commence at higher of ‘social
rent rate or ‘assumed rent rate’ (less 1% during
rent reduction period) plus any service charges
where calculated
Review of services charges – ensuring full cost
is rechargeable by accurately recording costs
associated with specific properties/reducing
costs of services provided
De-pooling basic rent and service charges
Review
of
leasehold
management
arrangements (service charges) – to ensure we
reflecting the cost of providing services in the
charging process and/or to highlight where
costs are high and the service provided
requires review
Other, for example:
- annual rent amendments carried out inhouse removing of consultant
- review of payment methods
- maximising garage rental income
- Repairs
recharges
–
ensuring
all
recahrgeable repairs are billed correctly
Post service review completion, removal of
vacancies where responsibilities are now
covered by joint service arrangements

Page 89

Potential
Annual Reduction
2018/19
2019/20

2020/21

250,000
*potential
further
reduction

200,000

30,000

30,000

5,000

5,000

10,000

10,000

15,000

15000

30,000

Repairs and
Maintenance – overall
reduction in
expenditure

ICT Costs – reduction
in costs
Voids review

Tenancy
Arrangements
Stock Condition
surveys

Productivity improvements (review of processes
internally) increased on-contract expenditure,
capturing back office savings post service
review
Implementation of an alternative service
delivery model and / or further improvements in
productivity and procurement savnigs
Streamlining of systems, saving annual
license/software fees, removing duplication and
releasing Officer time. Focus on using the
remaining systems more effectively.
Increased income from improvements in voids
turn around times and review of tenancy
commencements
Reduction in expenditure from a review of voids
maintenance works carried out
Review of tenancy and neighbourhood
management processes
Disposal of surplus stock after consideration of
net present value assessment following
completion of stock condition survey

Total Annual Saving

85,000

50,000

150,000

25,000

25,000

20,000

20,000

30,000

30,000

15,000
150,000
625,000

185,000

60,000

330,000

4.4.12. To date, £460,000 in savings have been realised, and it is anticipated the
£625,000 target will be achieved – which will result in an underspend against
the HRA in 2017/18.
4.4.13. By including the HRA Financial Improvement Plan targets as above in the
HRA budget, this results in a £469,620 surplus position by the end of 2021/22.
However, this is subject to progression against the improvement plan and the
result of the stock condition surveys in determining the capital expenditure
requirements going forward.

Page 90

4.5.

Member Priority Projects

4.5.1.

During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions
have been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:

Member Priority Projects

(y/n)

Financial Implications
Costs
Firm - in
Costs not
understood plans
known
not in plans

Leader
Adopt an approved Local Plan which will be kept under review

Y

Communicate more effectively with residents

N

Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners
Work with our partners and the Local Enterprise Partnership to
bring funding to High Peak
Use our influence to secure better health and care services
through commissioners and from providers

N




Y
N

Parks, Leisure & Recycling
Establish a developer open space contributions plan

Y

Work with local residents to improve our parks

N

Take steps to reduce dog fouling and littering

Y

Finance & Corporate Services
Continually review and implement
rationalisation programme

an

efficiency

and

Y

Improve customer service

Y

Review car parking provision and extend resident concessionary
parking

Y









Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing
Review TIC and tourism service
Together with partners work for the delivery of the Crescent
development
Support the development of the Woods Mill area, Glossop Halls
and Torr Vale Mill
Create an “Open for Business” environment in High Peak
Housing
Complete and implement a Housing Management and Revenue
Plan

4.5.2.



Y
Y




Y
N

Y



Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in
the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications.

Page 91

5.

FINANCIAL FORECASTS

5.1.

Interest Rates

5.1.1.

The Bank of England Base Rate was increased from 0.25% to 0.50% at the
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting on 2nd November 2017. This was
a reversal of the post-EU Referendum emergency monetary stimulus
implemented in August 2016 when the Base Rate was cut from 0.50% to
0.25%.

5.1.2.

The MPC also gave forward guidance that they expected to increase Bank
Rate only twice more in the next three years to reach 1.0% by 2020.
Commentary continues that economic forecasting remains difficult with so
many external influences weighing on the UK, therefore forecasts are likely to
be subject to change.

5.1.3.

The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, albeit
gently. Borrowing should be considered where appropriate to the strategy with
a view to locking in lower rates and the cost of carry as trends begin to rise.

5.1.4.

Based on the current forecasts, and the refinancing assumptions, changes in
investment income and borrowing costs are highlighted below:
2018/19

2019/20

2020//21

2021//22

£

£

£

£

General Fund
Changes in Investment Income

(74,320)

(75,380)

(101,330)

(43,930)

Changes in Borrowing Costs

118,370

(53,700)

(55,640)

(125,140)

(66,400)

(42,340)

(45,000)

(31,810)

(141,180)

(73,550)

(20,090)

(15,230)

HRA
Changes in Investment Income
Changes in Borrowing Costs

5.2.

Inflationary Projections

5.2.1.

The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate,
as at September 2017, stood at 3.85% and 2.94% respectively. Inflation
forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure,
resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council.

5.2.2.

The MTFP presented to members in February 2017 was premised on inflation
assumptions at that time. Those inflationary assumptions have now been
rolled forward a further 12 months to incorporate the 2021/22 financial year
and have been updated to reflect the latest available information on trends in
Council expenditure. The additional costs to the Council arising from inflation
are forecast in the table below.

Page 92

Inflationary Changes

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Employee Costs
Premises Costs
Transport
Supplies and Services
In-Year Inflation Pressure

£
300,700
74,820
2,970
151,830
530,320

£
252,420
61,760
5,530
134,940
454,650

£
257,660
72,980
7,520
134,600
472,760

£
248,420
65,760
10,030
131,880
456,090

General Fund
Housing Revenue Account

420,240
110,080

348,750
105,900

363,910
108,850

350,050
106,040

5.3.

Budgetary Demand

5.3.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2017
analysed and projected forward both income and expenditure. This has been
revised to reflect known increases and decreases in budgetary demand.

5.3.2.

The current known changes in budgetary demand are highlighted below:-

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand
HRA pension past service deficit costs

2018/19
£

2019/20
£

2020/21
£

2021/22
£

(22,400)

(24,400)

(25,400)

(20,000)

2,500

(2,500)

2,500

(2,500)

(59,000)

(59,000)

-

-

DWP – HB administration grant reduction

21,000

-

-

-

DCC – Discontinue on-street parking arrangement

24,580

-

-

-

8,500

-

-

-

Insurance – Cut in discount rate

10,000

-

-

-

Rates Revaluation – increased NDR charge

30,200

-

-

-

Water rates base increase

10,500

-

-

-

4,000

-

-

-

Customer Services redeployment

(10,660)

-

-

-

Carelink Support – HRA contribution

(38,000)

-

-

-

Car Park Income – base budget adjustment

(22,700)

-

-

-

Trade Waste Income – base budget adjustment

(23,000)

Customer Services – e-bus

(10,000)

Customer Services - post

(15,000)

Procurement activity – base adjustment

(22,300)
(111,780)

(85,900)

(22,900)

(22,500)

38,000

-

-

-

HRA - Radon remediation works

110,000

(100,000)

Total – Housing Revenue Account

148,000

(100,000)

-

-

Uniforms – Customer Services (cyclical)
Pavilion Gardens – Octagon closure

Insurance – Increased Limits of Indemnity

Abolished credit card charges

Total – General Fund
HRA – Contribution to Carelink costs

Page 93

5.4.

Budget Growth

5.4.1.

In previous years, few additions in respect of budget growth have been
included in the MTFP. It was assumed in light of the financial pressures faced
by the Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, however, it
is necessary to include budget growth to meet spending commitments.

5.4.2.

The following items of budget growth have been included in this version of the
Medium Term Financial Plan.
Budget Growth

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

Service strengthening - Tourism

15,200

-

-

-

Total

15,200

-

-

-

5.5.

Pensions

5.5.1.

The last triennial actuarial valuation of the Derbyshire Pension Fund took
place in 2016. At this valuation, the High Peak portion of the Fund was in
deficit by £25.9 million and was 69% funded.

5.5.2.

The 2016 valuation determined the level of contributions necessary for the
following 3 year period (2017 – 2020). The Council was required to contribute
12.4% of pensionable pay plus £1,779,000 per annum in secondary payments
with effect from 2017/18.

5.5.3.

In year 3 of the MTFP (2020/21) the Fund will be subject to a further
revaluation scheduled to take place in 2019. At this stage it has been
assumed that the current level of contributions arising out of this valuation will
remain unaltered from the current high levels.

5.5.4.

These additional pension costs are included in the employee inflation element
of the Plan.

5.6.

Housing Revenue Account – Other Operating Expenditure

5.6.1.

There are a number of items that relate only to the HRA. They include some
direct elements of income and expenditure as well as notional charges for
asset depreciation and debt impairment.

5.6.2.

Increase in Other Operating Expenditure - The updated HRA plan provides for
a number of changes to operating expenditure as set out in the table below:

Page 94

Expenditure / (Income)

2018/19

Provision for Irrecoverable Debts
Charges for Depreciation
Past Service Pension Deficit Contribution
Increased /
Expenditure

(Reduced)

Other

Operating

£
(2,230)
549,030
22,400
569,200

2019/20
£

2020/21

2021/22

560
23,400

£
(1,320)
24,400

310
20,000

23,960

23,080

20,310

6.

FUNDING & INCOME GENERATION

6.1.

Council Tax

6.1.1.

The 2010 settlement heralded the introduction of 0% Council Tax increases,
restricting the capacity of Local Authorities to raise council tax to meet budget
pressures and cuts in Central Government funding. Government initially
provided funding to mitigate the shortfall in local authority income between
2011/12 and 2015/16.

6.1.2.

The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition
of capping. However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more
than 1.99% is subject to referendum. In 2017/18 the Council raised the
Council Tax applying a 1.9% increase.

6.1.3.

At this stage it is assumed the Authority will increase its share of Council Tax
by 1.9% in each year of the 4 years covered by this Plan.

6.1.4.

Provision for tax base growth remains unchanged from the levels assumed in
February. A provisional figure has been included for Year 4. Further work will
be carried out in the course of the next few months to recalculate likely
changes in the tax base. Updated figures will be included in the February
iteration of the MTFP.

6.1.5.

The table below sets out the additional yield from Council Tax as assumed in
the Medium Term Financial Plan:
Increased Council Tax Income

2018/19
£

Revenue from increased Council Tax
Revenue from Tax Base growth
Total

2019/20
£

2020/21
£

2021/22
£

(103,200)

(106,210)

(109,410)

(112,580)

(55,370)

(62,060)

(57,490)

(58,000)

(158,570)

(168,270)

(166,900)

(170,580)

Page 95

6.2.

Business Rates Retention

6.2.1.

The 2013/14 Local Government Finance Settlement saw the introduction of
the new business rates retention system, replacing the previous system of
financing with a system based on the retention of business rates.

6.2.2.

Under the current system, the Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a
tariff that is payable in to a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This amount is then
compared to a Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,274,700 for 2018/19): any
amount in excess of this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the
amount of retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped
by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling
below the Baseline.

6.2.3.

As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy is made to the Pool instead of Central
Government. If the Council was not in the Derbyshire Pool it would have to
pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively limiting the income
the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as part of the
Pool, the Council is able to retain some of this levy. Under the Pool
agreement, this amount will depend on the amount all members of the Pool
pay in at the end of the year, and the proportional success of the Council
against its own baseline.

6.2.4.

The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool arrangement is estimated
to be approximately £200,000 in 2018/19.

6.2.5.

In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of
reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to
RSG.

6.2.6.

In outline the proposals for reform are as follows:







6.2.7.

Local authorities will retain 100% of BR to fund local spending on services;
The new system will be in place by the end of the current Parliament
Local authorities with be able to retain income from growth – i.e. there will
be no levy;
The reform will be fiscally neutral and local authorities will have new
responsibilities and / or central government grants will be phased out;
Local authorities will have the ability to reduce rates – there will be the
ability to increase for combined authority mayors; and
The new system will retain a system of tariffs and top ups subject to a
fundamental review of needs.

In July 2016 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
published two consultation papers:



Self-sufficient local government: 100% BR Retention; and
BR Reform - Fair Funding Review: Call for evidence on Needs and
Redistribution.

Page 96

6.2.8.

The Council responded to the consultation documents, detail of which was
reported to Executive on 22nd September 2016.

6.2.9.

There remains uncertainly surrounding how the new system will be phased in
and in what form. Following invitation from DCLG, Derbyshire Authorities have
made an application to become a pilot area for 100% Business Rates
Retention. Further updates on this and the progress of 100% retention
schemes generally will be presented as more information is released. For the
purpose of the MTFP, no financial assumptions have been included based on
the proposed new system or potential pilots, these will be fed into the plans
once we have more certainty around how the new system will operate.

6.2.10. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the
baseline. Net NDR income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of
reliefs including increased small business rate relief, multiplier cap, supporting
small businesses and local discretionary relief. To compensate for the loss of
business rates income resulting from the reliefs, funding has to date been
made available to Councils under Section 31 of the Local Government Act
2003. The MTFP assumes both the extension of reliefs and Section 31 grants
will continue.
6.2.11. The forecast level of Business Rates retention has reduced since the previous
iteration of the MTFP in February 2017 following a review of the appeals
provision methodology on the 2017 list. The impact of the reduction on the life
of the plan is partially offset from the resulting decrease in levies payable and
the prudent assumption that funding would not increase as a result of the
2017 revaluation.
6.2.12. Overall reduced levels of retention are seen most significantly in year 1 of the
plan. This is a result of reductions in net income from successful appeals and
new reliefs awarded as a result of the Chancellor’s budget which were not
known at the time of budget setting. The reliefs are funded by S31 grants as
described above – this creates a surplus on business rates retention in the
current year on the general fund, but a collection fund deficit in year 1 of the
plan. Therefore it is appropriate to ring fence the surpluses being forecast in
the current year to fund the distribution of the deficit being created in year 1.
6.2.13. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a
range of factors, including business growth in the area. At this stage, predicted
levels of business rates income are based on known and expected changes to
the business rates listing.

Page 97

Business Rates Retention

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

In year:
Baseline Funding
Achievement against Baseline
Section 31 Grant

(2,274,700)

(2,347,400)

(2,422,430)

(2,499,850)

272,010

223,570

213,310

225,150

(890,450)

(867,190)

(866,530)

(888,760)

(2,893,140)

(2,991,020)

(3,075,650)

(3,163,460)

68,160

(121,140)

(85,290)

(65,580)

89,210
157,370

23,260
(97,880)

660
(84,630)

(22,230)
(87,810)

Change between years:
Business Rates retained
Section 31 Grant

6.3.

Collection Fund

6.3.1.

The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax
and Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any
surplus or deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in
subsequent years.

6.3.2.

The collection fund assumptions regarding Council Tax remain unaltered from
the previous version of the MTFP presented in February 2017. Further work
will be carried out over the next few months to update these assumptions and
revised figures will be included in the February 2018 MTFP. At this stage, it is
expected that the High Peak’s share of a surplus, in respect of Council Tax,
will be £64,460 in 2018/19.

6.3.3.

It is assumed that a deficit, after providing for appeals, of £2,365,600 will be
distributed in 2018/19 in respect of retained Business Rates generated in the
current and previous years. High Peak’s share of this deficit will be £946,240.
It is assumed the Business Rates element of the collection fund will break
even in future years, leaving no surplus or deficit for distribution.

6.3.4.

These and future year movements are set out in the table below:

Changes in Collection Fund Income

Council Tax

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

240

(1,550)

(1,630)

-

Business Rates

1,026,650

(946,240)

-

-

Total

1,026,890

(947,790)

(1,630)

-

Page 98

6.4.

Income from Government Grants
Revenue Support Grant

6.4.1.

The current MTFP, reported to Council in February 2016, includes the phased
elimination of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) announced by the Government
in October 2015.

6.4.2.

This revision of the MTFP maintains the profile of RSG reduction proposed by
the Government as part of the 4 year settlement in February 2016. Reductions
of £544,480 (33%), £334,340 (21%) and £245,760 (15%) in 2017/18, 2018/19
and 2019/20 respectively are included. This results in no RSG being included
in the Authority’s funding by 2019/20.

6.4.3.

Local Authorities were required to submit an efficiency plan to Government by
14th October 2016 if they wanted to accept the 4 year settlement. The plan
should set out what the Council intends to do in order to address the
challenge of financial sustainability. If the four-year offer is not accepted the
Council would be subject to the existing annual process for determining the
local government finance settlement. Allocations could be subject to additional
reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need to make further
savings to reduce the deficit.

6.4.4.

The Council accepted the 4 year settlement and submitted an efficiency plan
In November 2016 (this was attached to the November 2016 MTFP update).
New Homes Bonus

6.4.5.

New Homes Bonus (NHB) is aimed at encouraging local authorities to grant
planning permission for the building of new houses, in return for additional
revenue.

6.4.6.

Consultation on the future format of New Homes Bonus was carried out in
2016 with the outcome being included in the settlement details released in
December 2016. The main changes to the scheme, which will came into
effect on 1st April 2017, were incorporated into the February 2017 MTFP.
These were:


6.4.7.

The reduction in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from the
current 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18; to be followed by a further reduction
to 4 years in 2018/19;
The removal of New Homes Bonus paid on development below a 0.4%
baseline; representing the percentage of housing that would have been
built anyway.

Further changes, proposed in the consultation, have been put on hold to be
considered for implementation in 2018/19 (no further update on this has been
received as yet). These include:
 Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a
Local Plan in place; and

Page 99



Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a new
development has only been granted on appeal.

6.4.8.

Under the new rules; the Council expects to receive New Homes Bonus of
£115,960 in respect of 2018/19. This has been incorporated into the MTFP
together with anticipated receipts of £169,890 in respect of 2019/20; £264,280
in respect of 2020/2; and £129,440 in respect of 2021/22. These amounts
assume no detrimental increase in the Government’s (0.4%) baseline.

6.4.9.

The total New Homes Bonus included in the MTFP over the 4 year period is
£2.41 million. This is on a diminishing trend as the more generous early years
awards drop off over the medium term. The MTFP anticipates £537,460 in
2018/19; £548,000 in 2019/20; £649,280 in 2020/21; and £675,580 in
2021/22.

6.4.10. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme includes £120,000 in additional
New Homes Bonus over the next 4 years, arising out of stimulated housing
growth. The year-on-year growth anticipated in 6.4.9 will be applied against
this element of the Efficiency Plan.
6.4.11. The Council’s commitment to encouraging the building of new homes also has
the effect of generating additional revenue from an increase in the council tax
base. However, increased costs are potentially incurred in servicing the
needs of the additional properties.
Local Council Tax Support Scheme
6.4.12. The Council operates a scheme whereby funding received from central
Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support is passed onto the
parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant is based on
the eligibility of parish residents for council tax discounts.
6.4.13. The level of resources made available for this grant has remained constant in
spite of reductions in overall Government funding. The MTFP assumes that
this approach will continue. This comes at a cost to the Council, which in
2018/19 equates to £29,580.

Page 100

Summary of Income from Government Grants
6.4.14. The table below summarises the assumed level of and movement in
Government funding:
Government Grant
(gain) / loss of
funding

Revenue Support
Grant
New Homes Bonus
Change in Govt
Funding

2016/17
(baseline)

2017/18
(actual)

2018/19
(forecast)

2019/20
(forecast)

2020/21
(forecast)

2021/22
(forecast)

£

£

£

£

£

£

(1,124,580)

544,480

334,340

245,760

-

-

(773,320)

48,260

187,590

(10,540)

(101,280)

(30,300)

(1,897,900)

592,740

521,930

235,220

(101,280)

(30,300)

6.4.15. The changes shown in the table above mean that the Government grant
funding received by the Council will have reduced to £679,590 by 2021/22
compared to the £1,897,900 received in 2016/17.
6.5.

Fees and Charges
General Fees and Charges

6.5.1.

Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s
finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities. The Council’s
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of
fees and charges:





The cost of providing services should be fully met by income
There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes
Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the
development of Council services in accordance with priorities
Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually

6.5.2.

The annual revision of the Council’s fees and charges will take place over the
next few months, which will also incorporate some of the work undertaken as
part of the Income Generation project. The outcome of which will be reported
in February.

6.5.3.

The Medium Term Financial Plan currently projects that the Council will
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation.
However, it is also recognised that certain income streams (such as car
parking, planning receipts) may not increase each year and that other income
streams (such as grants and rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic
review. The annual total expected from this source has been reduced from
£100,000 recognising the overlap in income generation included in the
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (see 4.4 above).

Page 101

6.5.4.

The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is
summarised in the table below:

Increased Fees and Changes

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

Revenue from increased Fees and Charges

(80,000)

(75,000)

(70,000)

(65,000)

Total

(80,000)

(75,000)

(70,000)

(65,000)

Housing Revenue Account – Rent Charges
6.5.5.

As detailed in section 4.3, the Government announced in July 2015 far
reaching legislative and financial changes for the social housing sector, the
most significant financially being the announcement to reduce by 1% per
annum from April 2016 for 4 years.

6.5.6.

The Government announced in October 2017 that after the four year 1% rent
reduction ends in 2019/20, Authorities will be able to increase rents from
2020/21 by CPI +1%.

6.5.7.

Therefore, the current HRA Plan projects an average rent decrease on
dwellings 1.0% in 2018/19 – 2019/20, with a 1.5% increase assumed from
2020/21. It also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and
sheltered housing service, will increase in 2018/19.
Reduced Rental Income

Reduced revenue from Rental Income and
Other Charges

2018/19

2019/20*

2020/21

£

£

£

222,770

(56,310)

131,930

2021/22

(30,800)

*53 week rent year

6.5.8.

As part of the HRA review, a draft rent policy has been presented to the HRA
working group, the outcome of which if implemented, will potentially increase
income targets (and partially offset the HRA Financial Improvement Plan
savings targets). This is subject to consultation and formal approval in
February 2018.

7.

RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & USE OF RESERVES

7.1.

Risks and Contingencies

7.1.1.

The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium
Term Financial Planning process. Risks to the MTFP are assessed, mitigated
and actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services
effectively within the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium
Term Financial Plan are summarised in ANNEX C.

Page 102

7.1.2.

The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within
this Medium Term Financial Plan:
Revenue Risks














Capital Risks

Inflationary assumptions
Interest rates
Housing benefits
Fees and charges
Universal Credit
Business Rates
Council Tax collection
Housing Rent levels (HRA
affordability)
Government grants
Financial benefits from partnerships
/ shared services
Pension costs
Outsourced waste contract
Outsourced leisure contract











Interest rates
External funding
Capital receipts
Capacity to deliver capital
programme
Project overspend
Project overrun
External factors (e.g. planning
objections, judicial reviews etc.
leading to project delay)
Housing finance
Weather

7.2.

Contingencies

7.2.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions.
These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available
information. New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to
alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial
position.

7.2.2.

Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis
and remedial action taken. Members will receive quarterly updates on
performance against the budget. The Council will carry adequate reserves as
a contingency against risks that cannot be fully mitigated.

7.2.3.

The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks
cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the
budget provides. The Council is currently required to hold a general
(contingency) reserve of £1,300,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure.

Page 103

7.3.

Use of Reserves and Balances
General Fund Reserves and Balances

7.3.1.

The February 2017 Medium Term Financial Plan included a £6,550
contribution from General Fund Reserves in 2017/18 in respect of Section 106
(Commuted Sum). The level of Section 106 reserve usage has been revised
to £2,090 in 2018/19, £1,870 in 2019/20 and £1,640 pa thereafter.

7.3.2.

The February 2017 MTFP also included the use of General Fund contingency
reserves in 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 necessary to smooth timing
differences in the delivery of the Efficiency Programme.

7.3.3.

The Quarter Two report forecasts that there will be a surplus against budget of
approximately £1079,710, in which case, there will be a net contribution to
reserves of £532,690 in 2017/18. The improved reserve position at the end of
2017/18 will need to be ring-fenced to account for the increased use of
reserve required in 2018/19 as a result of business rate accounting (for
appeals and reliefs as discussed in section 6.2).

7.3.4.

Financial assumptions have been updated as part of this plan, but at this
stage, no movement to or from reserves have been included (apart from the
planned £7,240 draw from the S106 reserve over the 4 years), so the plan
remains unbalanced – this will be updated as part of the February 2018 MTFP
update. However, based on the deficit/surplus position (as per ANNEX D) the
required use of reserves would be some £147,680 more than reported in
February 2017:-

Reserve / Balance

General Fund
(use)/contribution to
reserves – February 2017
General Fund
(use)/contribution to
reserves – November 2017
Change in use of reserves

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

£

£

(547,020)

(833,420)

(715,350)

-

-

(2,095,790)

532,690

(1,957,390)

(775,890)

(16,400)

(26,480)

(2,243,470)

1,079,710

(1,123,970)

(60,540)

(16,400)

(26,480)

(147,680)

HRA Reserves and Balances
7.3.5.

The HRA balance is made up of surpluses that have accumulated over a
number of years. The Council retains a minimum of £1 million (approximately
£250 per property) in order to cover unexpected events that could - if realised
– trigger financial pressures.

Page 104

7.3.6.

Due to the strict ring-fencing rules that apply to the HRA, any funds set aside
form part of HRA reserves. The table below summarises the projected HRA
reserves position for the duration of this MTFP.







HRA Working Balance – this reserve is the excess of income after
expenditure in any given year and is set aside to provide for capital
expenditure demands in the future and to provide a contingency against
unforeseen costs.
Housing Reform / contingency reserve – this reserve was set aside to fund
potential additional unforeseen costs of housing reform and self-financing.
Stock Condition Reserve – this reserve has been set aside to fund the cost
of providing a stock condition survey.
Major Void Reserve – this reserve is a contingency against the costs of
Void properties requiring external or structural major works.
Capital Investment Fund – this reserve is used to smooth the cost of
borrowing required to fund any capital expenditure
2017/18
£
9,448,832

2018/19
£
10,073,832

2019/20
£
10,565,752

2020/21
£
11,013,652

2021/22
£
11,531,782

Surplus/(Loss) for the year*

625,000

491,920

447,900

518,130

469,620

Transfers to / from reserves

-

-

-

-

-

10,073,832

10,565,752

11,013,652

11,531,782

12,001,402

457,560

457,560

457,560

457,560

457,560

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

10,931,392

11,423,312

11,871,212

12,389,342

12,858,962

446,872

446,872

446,872

446,872

446,872

11,378,264

11,870,184

12,318,084

12,836,214

13,305,834

HRA Reserves Brought Forward

HRA Working Balance
Housing Reform / Contingency
Reserves
Stock Condition Reserve
Major Void Reserve
Total Working Balance carried forward
Capital Investment Fund carried forward
Total HRA Reserves carried forward

*subject to stock condition survey results

7.3.7.

It can be seen from the table above that the HRA balance is projected to
exceed its £1 million contingency minimum over the next four years.

Page 105

8. MTFP REVENUE POSITION
8.1.

General Fund Revenue Position

8.1.1.

The medium term General Fund revenue position is as set out in the table
below:

Summary Revenue Position

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£

£

£

£

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 4.2)

128,440

157,950

189,290

174,990

Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1)

(74,320)

(75,380)

(101,330)

(43,930)

Borrowing Costs (section 5.1)

118,370

(53,700)

(55,640)

(125,140)

Inflation Pressures (section 5.2)

420,240

348,750

363,910

350,050

(111,780)

(85,900)

(22,900)

(22,500)

15,200

-

-

-

(158,570)

(168,270)

(166,900)

(170,580)

157,370

(97,880)

(84,630)

(87,810)

1,026,890

(947,790)

(1,630)

-

Reduction in Government Grant (section 6.4)

521,930

235,220

(101,280)

(30,300)

Additional Fees and Charges (section 6.5)

(80,000)

(75,000)

(70,000)

(65,000)

Contribution to Reserves & Balances (section 7)

547,020

-

-

-

In Year Change in Position

2,510,790

(762,000)

(51,110)

(20,220)

Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 4.4)
Growth efficiencies realised

(581,000)
27,600

(430,000)
10,500

(809,680)
101,300

30,300

Budget (Surplus) / Deficit
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit

1,957,390
1,957,390

(1,181,500)
775,890

(759,490)
16,400

10,080
26,480

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 5.3)
Budget Growth (section 5.4)
Increased Council Tax Income (section 6.1)
Business Rates Retention (section 6.2)
Changes in Collection Fund (section 6.3)

8.1.2.

Annex D shows the projected General Fund revenue position in detail.

Page 106

8.2.

Housing Revenue Account Revenue Position

8.2.1.

The medium term Housing Revenue Account revenue position is as set out in
the table below.
Summary Revenue Position

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

£
(57,000)

£
(491,920)

£
(447,900)

£
(518,130)

(467,390)

246,360

61,000

-

(66,400)

(42,340)

(45,000)

(31,810)

(141,180)

(73,550)

(20,090)

(15,230)

Inflation Pressures (Section 5.2)

110,080

105,900

108,850

106,040

Increased / reduced budget demand (section 5.3)

148,000

(100,000)

-

-

Increased / reduced budget growth (section 5.4)

-

-

-

-

Increase in Other Operating Expenditure (section
5.6)

569,200

23,960

23,080

20,310

Reduction in Rent and Other Charges (section 6.5)

222,770

(56,310)

131,930

(30,800)

318,080

(387,900)

(188,130)

(469,620)

(810,000)
(491,920)

(60,000)
(447,900)

(330,000)
(518,130)

(469,620)

Budget surplus brought forward
Revenue consequence of Capital spend (section 4.2)
Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1)
Borrowing Costs (section 5.1)

In Year Change in Position
HRA Rationalisation Plan (section 4.4)
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

8.2.2.

Annex D shows the projected Housing Revenue Account revenue position in
detail.

9.

CONSULTATION

9.1.

The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders
to help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities.
A variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have been
iterative, building year on year on what has gone before. The Council already
holds comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending priorities.
Much of this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. The
financial challenges for the Council are now very different.

9.2.

The consultation process for 2018/19 will be undertaken via an online
communication available on the Council’s website, which summarises the
finanicial challenges and invites comment on the plan. There will also be
reference included within the December e-newsletter issued by Regeneration
to local businesses which will include a brief narrative with links to on-line
information.

Page 107

9.3.

It will be particularly important that the Council, as it makes difficult budgetary
decisions, is able to evidence that it has considered the impact of its decisions
on groups with ‘protected characteristics’.

9.4.

Going forward, the Council will be developing a timetable of consultation,
which will focus on specific emerging issues that will potentially have a
significant impact on the Council’s finances over the medium term.

Page 108

ANNEX A
Proposed Capital Projections (2017/18 to 2021/22) – General Fund

Capital Schemes

2017/18
£

2018/19
£

2019/20
£

2021/22
£

Total
£

3,226,740
90,000
215,330
100,000
3,632,070

1,809,270
30,000
224,000
144,460
2,207,730

2,382,640
130,000
2,512,640

455,000
455,000

285,630
121,000
100,000
1,691,170
2,197,800

7,704,280
241,000
1,124,330
1,935,630
11,005,240

Growth Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

Affordable Housing

-

-

-

-

-

-

Housing(RTB 1 for 1)

142,000

301,050

597,000

340,000

340,000

1,720,050

Housing Grants

455,240

421,000

421,000

421,000

421,000

2,139,240

ICT

104,310

9,640

9,640

9,640

9,640

142,870

60,000
8,900
58,610
244,330
371,840

45,000
144,000
90,000
279,000

45,000
200,000
245,000

45,000
45,000

45,000
45,000

60,000
8,900
238,610
388,330
290,000
985,840

4,705,460

3,218,420

3,785,280

1,270,640

3,013,440

15,993,240

520,720
10,000
642,000
3,532,740
4,705,460

421,000
491,050
2,306,370
3,218,420

421,000
1,407,000
1,957,280
3,785,280

421,000
620,000
229,640
1,270,640

421,000
340,000
2,252,440
3,013,440

2,204,720
10,000
3,500,050
10,278,470
15,993,240

Asset Management
Council Offices/Public Buildings
Car Parks
Infrastructure
Leisure Centres

Other Schemes
Play Facilities
Country Parks
Cemeteries
Conservation/Heritage
Market Town Regeneration
New Projects Provision

Total Programme

2020/21
£

Funding of Programme
External Contributions
Section 106 Obligations
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserves
Borrowing

Page 109

ANNEX A
Proposed Capital Projections (2017/18 to 2021/22) – Council Dwellings (HRA)

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:
Roofing & External Works
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Central Heating
Electrical Works
Health & Safety
Aids & Adaptations
Sheltered Schemes Lightning Protection
HRA Shop Works
Retaining Wall at ALMA
Gladstone Street External Repairs
Unity Walk & Quarry Close Railing
Cross Street Structural
Commercial Boiler Renewal
Corbar Road Roofing Works
Scooter Stores
Stock Condition Survey Works
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Major Voids
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms
STAFFING
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs

TOTAL SPEND

Budget
2017/18
£

Budget
2018/19
£

Budget
2019/20
£

Budget
2020/21
£

Budget
2021/22
£

228,000

228,000

228,000

228,000

228,000

380,000

350,000

350,000

350,000

350,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

1,160,000

1,180,000

1,180,000

1,180,000

1,180,000

748,000

788,000

788,000

788,000

788,000

55,000

125,000

125,000

125,000

125,000

350,000

350,000

350,000

350,000

350,000

40,000

-

-

-

-

10,000

-

-

-

-

33,200

-

-

-

-

40,000

-

-

-

-

35,000

-

-

-

-

55,000

-

-

-

-

248,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

40,000

-

-

-

-

75,000

-

-

-

-

55,000

270,000

270,000

270,000

270,000

3,652,200

3,441,000

3,441,000

3,441,000

3,441,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

35,000

35,000

35,000

35,000

35,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

60,000

60,000

60,000

60,000

60,000

395,000

395,000

395,000

395,000

395,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

4,147,200

3,936,000

3,936,000

3,936,000

3,936,000

Page 110

ANNEX B
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (2017/18 – 2020/21)

Efficiency
Major Procurements
Waste Collection etc.
Leisure Centres
Facilities Management
Asset Management
Asset Rationalisation
Growth
Housing Growth
Business Growth
Income Generation
Fees & Charges
Pavilion Gardens
Advertising / Sponsorship
Enhanced Trading
Rationalisation
Management Staffing
Channel Shift
Parish Grants
Service Rationalisation

TOTAL

2017/18
£'000

2018/19
£'000

2019/20
£'000

2020/21
£'000

TOTAL
£'000

100
100

200
75
275

100
100

100
400
500

500
400
75
975

-

30
30

200
200

-

230
230

-

40
40

40
40

40
150
190

120
150
270

40
50
90

120
60
10
190

70
70

120
120

240
170
60
470

100
20
120

26
20
46

20
20

-

100
46
40
186

310

581

430

810

2,131

HRA Financial Improvement Plan (2017/18 – 2021/22)
Budget Heading

Capital Financing

Rent Income
Repairs and Maintenance

ICT Costs
Rent Income / Repairs &
Maintenance Expenditure
Various headings

Savings

Reduction in voluntary repayment of debt (currently £1.2
million per annum) – to be benchmarked – maximum
annual reduction
Introduction of new rent policy
Reduction in repairs and maintenance expenditure due
to implementation of an alternative service delivery
model and / or improvements in productivity
Reduction in costs of ICT systems
Savings from improvements in voids turn around times
Disposal of surplus stock after consideration of net
present value assessment following completion of stock
condition survey

Total Annual Saving

Potential
Annual
Reduction
£
500,000
150,000
250,000
50,000
100,000
150,000
1,200,000

Page 111

ANNEX C
Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks
Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Financial
Implications

Robustness of financial
assumptions within Efficiency
and Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management
arrangements have been put in place with
detailed business cases for each initiative –
these will be strengthened in the service
review process

Financial
Implications

Additional financial pressures
emerge – cost & income

The strategy is kept under constant review
and adjustments will be made where
necessary

Service
Continuity

Interruptions to key services or
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are
identified as part of the business case
process. Service continuity and
maintenance of standards of service are
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder
confidence; lack of clarity on
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan
will be reviewed to account for the new
approach proposed in the efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of
Change

Management of corporate and
local, cultural change;
behavioural risks; residual
effects of aggregation;
proposed changes to
organisational structure, roles
& responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be
monitored through an effective performance
management structure. Investment has
been made in a new approach to
Organisational Development.

People Risks

Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills;
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects &
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology
provides for an adequate transition where
there are changes in service delivery

Page 112

Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Performance
Management

Adequacy of framework to
monitor transition

Risk management processes are
embedded

Reputation and
Relationship
Risks

Maintaining existing partner
confidence

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Programme
Delivery

Delays in implementation of
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place
to monitor plans.
Executive Directors and Senior Managers
own delivery of efficiencies.
Executive Director (Transformation)
appointed as programme director.

Programme
Delivery

A number of the efficiency /
rationalisation initiatives are
not achieved

Structured project management approach is
in place for delivery including effective
exception reporting
The strategy is kept under constant review
Identification of further efficiency /
rationalisation opportunities through
benchmarking / effective member working
groups

Political Support

Lack of Members support for
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Page 113

ANNEX D
Proposed Revenue Projections (2018/19 to 2021/22) – General Fund

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support
Financing Costs

2018/19
Projection
£
13,042,750
4,258,410
848,180
9,813,360
82,460
1,672,040
51,320
191,000

2019/20
Projection
£
13,295,170
4,320,170
853,710
9,845,800
82,460
1,776,290
51,320
191,000

2020/21
Projection
£
13,552,830
4,393,150
861,230
9,982,900
82,460
1,909,940
51,320
191,000

2021/22
Projection
£
13,801,250
4,458,910
871,260
10,112,280
82,460
1,959,790
51,320
191,000

Total Expenditure

29,959,520

30,415,920

31,024,830

31,528,270

(10,375,720)

(10,509,720)

(10,579,720)

(10,644,720)

Interest Receipts

(139,040)

(214,420)

(315,750)

(359,680)

HRA Recharges

(8,311,500)

(8,341,800)

(8,476,050)

(8,602,090)

(231,240)

(231,240)

(231,240)

(231,240)

Net Expenditure

10,902,020

11,118,740

11,422,070

11,690,540

Council Tax

(5,590,090)

(5,758,360)

(5,925,260)

(6,095,840)

(245,760)

0

0

0

(2,893,140)

(2,991,020)

(3,075,650)

(3,163,460)

(537,470)

(548,010)

(649,290)

(679,590)

(6,550)

(6,550)

(6,550)

(6,550)

881,780

(66,010)

(67,640)

(67,640)

(8,391,230)

(9,369,950)

(9,724,390)

(10,013,080)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)

2,510,790

1,748,790

1,697,680

1,677,460

Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)

(581,000)

(1,011,000)

(1,820,680)

(1,820,680)

27,600

38,100

139,400

169,700

1,957,390

775,890

16,400

26,480

Budget Heading

Fees and Charges / Other Income

Capital Recharges

Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates Retention
New Homes Bonus
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves
Collection Fund

Total Financing

Growth Efficiency realised (cumulative)
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)

Page 114

ANNEX D
Proposed Revenue Projections (2018/19 to 2021/22) – Housing Revenue Account

Budget Heading

Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment Charges
Interest & Debt Management Charges
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme
Total Expenditure

2018/19
Projection
£

2019/20
Projection
£

2020/21
Projection

2021/22
Projection
£

3,886,060
2,892,100
105,200
712,530
2,099,030
3,174,050

3,786,060
2,938,000
105,200
736,490
2,099,030
3,058,160

3,456,060
3,046,850
105,200
759,570
2,099,030
2,993,070

3,456,060
3,152,890
105,200
779,880
2,099,030
2,946,030

1,529,610

1,775,970

1,836,970

1,836,970

14,398,580

14,498,910

14,296,750

14,376,060

Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income

(14,272,770)
(617,730)

(14,329,080) (14,197,150)
(617,730)
(617,730)

(14,227,950)
(617,730)

Total Income

(14,890,500)

(14,946,810) (14,814,880)

(14,845,680)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year

(491,920)

Page 115

(447,900)

(518,130)

(469,620)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Executive
7 December 2017

TITLE:

Empty Property Strategy

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor J McCabe – Executive Councillor
for Housing and Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Mark Trillo – Executive Director (People) and
Monitoring Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached: Appendix A – Empty Property Strategy 2017

1.

Reason for the Report
1.1

2.

Recommendation
2.1

3.

It is important to increase activity and strategic direction in relation to
empty properties in order to maximise available housing stock; reduce
the effects that empty properties may have; and realise the benefits of
bringing empty properties back into use. The Alliance wide Empty
Property Strategy sets out the national and local context, and strategic
objectives to realise the potential benefits of bringing properties back
into use.

That the Executive approves the Empty Property Strategy and
Implementation Plan.

Executive Summary
3.1

Empty homes can have a negative impact on the community and the
Council representing a wasted resource when left vacant, but if tackled
can present considerable opportunity.

3.2

The benefits that will be derived from the implementation of a coordinated strategic approach to empty properties are much wider than
increasing housing supply and generating income (in the form of an
increase in Council Tax Base and New Homes Bonus received by the

Page 117

Council). The objectives of the proposed strategy are as follows:









4.

5.

6.

To bring empty private sector properties back into use to
maximise housing stock;
To raise awareness of empty property issues;
To minimise the number of properties that become long-term
empties at an early stage;
To create accurate information in relation to empty properties;
To promote the availability of information and services to empty
property owners and private landlords;
To provide sustainable development by reducing the need to
build new properties, therefore reducing the pressure to build
in greenfield sites in the open countryside;
To discourage -anti social behaviour, crime or fear of crime
which can occur when a building is empty;
To improve housing conditions, the vitality of the built
environment and prevent the deterioration of the buildings.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities
4.1

The strategy contributes to the Corporate Plan 2015-19 aim of helping
to create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and
work.

4.2

A reduction in the number of empty properties will generate income (in
the form of an increase in Council Tax Base and New Homes Bonus
received by the Council).

Options and Analysis
5.1

Option 1- Proceed with the recommendations and approve the
proposed Empty Property Strategy.

5.2

Option 2- Reject the recommendations and propose an alternative
approach. Without a strategic co-ordinated direction the potential
benefits of bringing properties back into use may not be realised (Not
recommended).

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
A reduction of empty properties may have a positive impact and
improve the quality of an area and assist in the reduction of
vandalism and anti social behaviour.

6.2

Workforce
There are no specific implications with this report.

Page 118

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The report has been prepared in line with Council policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
Any indicative financial information presented in the Empty
Property Strategy will be subject to further discussions as part of
the Councils medium term financial plan, capital programme and
budgetary process.
A reduction in empty properties will increase the Council tax base
and generate income to the Council through New Homes Bonus
received.

7.

6.5

Legal
There are no specific implications to this report. There will be legal
implications following review of enforcement powers and in respect
of any specific action taken by the Council.

6.6

Sustainability
There are no specific implications to this report.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
Consultation has been undertaken with the relevant internal
Council service areas.

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are no specific implications to this report.

Background and Detail
7.1

Properties that are inactive in the housing market and have remained
empty for over six months are classed as problematic vacancies and
are targeted for action within the strategy proposed within this report.
Also targeted are properties that have been highlighted through
complaints, although these properties may not have been empty for
over six months.

7.2

It should be recognised that the numbers of empty properties are
continually fluctuating as properties become empty and are re-occupied
on a daily basis, and therefore data can only identify a snapshot in time.
As at 31.7.2017, 2.6% of domestic properties are empty within the
Council’s housing market area. A low proportion of properties are empty
for a short, transitional period of time (under 3 months), with the
majority empty for six months or more (64%). A significant proportion,
17%, are empty for over 2 years and incur 150% Council Tax charge.

Page 119

Total properties banded
for Council Tax
purposes

50% discount up to 12m

Uninhabitable.

150% Charge

Empty & unfurnished.

Over 2yrs

100% Charge

Empty & unfurnished

6-24m

Empty and unfurnished
100% Charge

3-6m

100% Discount

Empty and unfurnished

0-3m
SMDC

182

210

325

272

100

43,899

HPBC

248

238

281

180

95

41,552

Source: 31.7.2017 Alliance data

7.3

Within the High Peak area empty properties are found within the private
sector. As at 1/4/2017 High Peak Borough Council owned 3989
properties, 39 properties were vacant, representing less than 1% of
total stock. There is significant demand for affordable housing with 1835
registered households seeking housing in High Peak and during
2016/17 103 households were statutorily homeless.

7.4

The Strategy aims to develop understanding of the reasons why
properties may be empty so that appropriate advice and assistance can
be developed accordingly. Nationally the reasons are numerous and
include:













Lack of interest - the owner may not fully appreciate the
business case for bringing their empty property back into use;
Low demand or housing market collapse so severe that
households become trapped in negative equity;
Over-supply of certain property types;
Area regeneration: a property may be empty pending
renovation or demolition or a property could be awaiting planning
consent;
The property may have been acquired solely for speculative
investment purposes and the owner is not concerned that the
property is empty ‘buy to leave’;
Fear of letting the property: some owners may be fearful of the
perceived difficulties associated with managing a rented property
and prefer to leave the property empty until the market improves
and selling becomes a more attractive option;
Property condition (owners may be unable to afford the works
necessary to bring a property back into a habitable condition or
experiencing ill health or await or lack planning consent);
Lack of finances – ill health, redundancy etc, resulting in delay in
renovations;
Repossession (empty whilst finance company place on the
market);
Prohibition Orders made under the Housing Act 2004;
Planning consent – waiting for or lack of;

Page 120





Unresolved ownership: following death protracted delays occur
as the property is going through Probate or the owner died
intestate and the legal title is in dispute;
Family disputes/Divorce settlements – awaiting completion before
decision to reoccupy or place on market;
Owner hospitalised/ in institutional care.

7.5

From a local authority perspective, a key government policy with regard
to empty homes is New Homes Bonus. This policy recognises the fact
that empty homes returned to use provide additional accommodation in
the same way that new build properties do. An empty home returned to
use and occupied is rewarded in the same way as a new home
delivered, via a payment of the equivalent Council Tax income to the
local authority for six financial years following its return to use. This can
generate an average of £9875 within High Peak. New Homes Bonus
not only encourages local authorities to invest in empty property work to
reduce the number of empty homes, it also ensures that this investment
remains and that the problem of empty properties is contained. In the
same way as a reduction in the number of empty homes attracts a
bonus and rewards local authorities, an increase in the number of
empty homes imposes a financial penalty, eating into any New Homes
Bonus that may be payable on new build properties.

7.6

Following consultation several changes to New Homes Bonus were
announced. From 2017 a national baseline for housing growth will apply
of 0.4%, below this NHB will not be paid. The aim of this change is to
ensure that “the money is used to reward additional housing rather than
just normal growth”. The number of years for which payments are made
will be reduced from six to five years in 2017-18 and reduced further to
four years from 2018-19. Despite these changes it is very much in the
interests of local authorities to not only reduce the number of properties
left empty but also to ensure the number remains as low as possible.

7.7

The negative effects of empty property are now relatively well
recognised and include:








Wasted financial resources for the Local Authority and owners;
Increased dereliction, boarded up windows, overgrown gardens
and rubbish dumping;
Squatting;
Petty crime and anti-social behaviour ranging from graffiti,
vandalism to, in extreme cases, serious criminal activity including
arson;
Reduced marketability and value in neighbouring properties and
the wider area, encouraging homeowners to move away from the
area before their equity is eroded and thereby contributing to a
spiral of decline;
An empty property may pose a direct risk to adjoining properties
through structural defects, damp etc;

Page 121



Wider multiplier effects, such as impacts on local businesses
through reduced demand for their goods and services and, in
areas of low demand, knock on effects on the viability of public
services, such as schools.

7.8

Local authorities have clear duties to maintain and enhance the health of
the housing market across all tenures. Where owners cannot be
identified or are unwilling to bring a property back into use, local
authorities have a range of statutory enforcement powers (outlined in
section 9 of the strategy) and can provide a range of guidance and
financial support.

7.9

The objectives and potential benefits to the Alliance of the proposed
strategy include:










7.10

Support aims within the Councils’ Corporate Plans;
Raise awareness of empty property issues and minimises the
number of properties that become long-term empties at an early
stage;
Create accurate information in relation to empty properties;
Identify and maximise funding and income opportunities
(including New Homes Bonus) ;
Improve housing conditions and prevent the deterioration of the
buildings;
Maximise use of existing housing stock and provide additional
good quality housing to meet housing and homelessness need
(reduce temporary accommodation expenditure);
Prevent empty properties becoming the focus of anti-social
behaviour, fear of crime and attracting adverse comment from the
wider community;
Provide effective advice and assistance to bring empty properties
back into use;
Good for public relations as it gives greater visible evidence of a
local authority's strategic policy and promotes the authority enabling
role.

A variety of funding sources can be used to return empty properties
into use (outlined in section 8 of the Strategy) and following greater
understanding of the current position it will be possible to develop more
specific targeted actions to target individual or groups of property for
delivery using identified funding models and the development of
business proposals. The Implementation Plan actions contained within
the proposed Strategy will:




Enable comprehensive understanding of the current position and
improve knowledge base;
Ensure effective communication of planned actions, empty property
information, advice and services;
Facilitate targeted actions and monitoring.

Page 122

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers
General background
information and
research to support
development of the
Strategy.

Location

Contact details

Buxton Town Hall

Michelle Costello
Housing Strategy Technical Officer
michelle.costello@staffsmoorlands
.gov.uk

Page 123

This page is intentionally left blank

Amended MT 19.10.17

High Peak Borough Council

and

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council

EMPTY PROPERTY STRATEGY 2017

Page 125

INDEX
SECTION A: BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT
1
2
3
4

Defining an Empty Property
National Context
Reasons for Empty Properties
Local Context

SECTION B: OBJECTIVES AND BENEFITS OF STRATEGY
5
6

Strategic Objectives
Benefits of the Strategy

SECTION C: OPTIONS TO DEAL WITH EMPTY PROPERTIES
7
8
9

Encouraging Owners to Reuse Empty Properties
Funding Bringing Empty Properties Back Into Use
Taking Action against Owners of Empty Property

SECTION D: PROPOSED ACTION
10

Action Plan

SECTION E: MONITORING AND REVIEW
11
12

Consultation
Performance Monitoring and Review

Page 2126

SECTION A: BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT
1

Defining an Empty Property

1.1

Empty homes occur for a variety of reasons. Some are empty for short periods of
time and tend to come back into use relatively quickly; others may be empty for a
significant period of time and are not likely to come back into use until the
underlying reason for the vacancy is addressed.

1.2

Research indicates that there are two main types of empty property:
Transitional Vacancies: Properties that are re-occupied relatively quickly and are
necessary for the mobility of the housing market are classed as transitional vacant
dwellings. These properties seldom require intervention in order to ensure that
they are brought back into the housing stock within 6 months of being vacated.
Transitional vacancies include properties which are for sale on the open market or
under offer, or properties that are being renovated with the intention to sell, rent or
occupy on completion.
Problematic Vacancies: Properties that are inactive in the housing market and
have remained empty for over six months are classed as problematic vacancies
and are targeted for action within this strategy. Also targeted are properties that
have been highlighted through complaints, these properties may not have been
empty for over six months.

2

National Context

2.1

As of October 2016, there were 589,766 empty homes in England. The number
is a slight (1.7%) decrease on the previous year's total and a 21% decrease on
the total for 2006 (744,931 empty homes). 200,145 homes had been empty for
six months or more in 2016. This was a 1.1% decrease on the previous year's
total and a 36% decrease on the 2006 total (326,954 empty homes).

Region
Nort West
North East
Yorkshire &
The Humber
East
Midlands
West
Midlands
East of
England
London
South West
South East
Total

Empty properties
Number
As % of total
stock
103,397
3.2
40,579
3.4
72,453
3.0

Long term vacant
Number
As % of total
stock
38,969
1.2
16,328
1.4
26,082
1.1

52,609

2.6

19,044

0.9

60,559

2.5

21,186

0.9

57,139

2.2

16,639

0.6

58,096
60,838
84,096
589,766

1.7
2.4
2.2
2.5

19,845
18,117
23,935
200,145

0.6
0.7
0.6
0.8

3
Page
127

Source: DCLG, Live Tables on dwellings stock Table 615 & 100

2.2

There are a many reasons why these properties may become empty. Reasons
include:












Lack of interest - the owner may not fully appreciate the business
case for bringing their empty property back into use.
The property may have been acquired solely for speculative
investment purposes and the owner is not concerned that the property
is empty.
Lack of finances – ill health, redundancy etc, resulting in delay in
renovations.
Owner in hospital/ institutional care.
Inheritance- awaiting completion of Probate.
Planning consent – waiting for or lack of.
The owner may not be aware of the property’s existence, for
example where property records are not kept.
Prohibition orders – Made under the Housing Act 2004.
Repossessions – Empty whilst finance company place property on market.
Lack of information and advice.
Family disputes/Divorce settlements – awaiting completion before decision
to reoccupy or place on market.

2.3

In addition to those properties that are recognised as ‘empty’, there is also a
significant body of commercial space that is under utilised. This includes office
accommodation and space above shops. It is estimated that UK businesses could
save up to £18 billion a year through improved use of their property.

2.4

The negative effects of empty property are now relatively well recognised.
These effects include:









Wasted financial resources for the Local Authority and owners.
Increased dereliction, boarded up windows, overgrown gardens and
rubbish dumping.
Squatting.
Petty crime and anti-social behaviour ranging from grafitti, vandalism to,
in extreme cases, serious criminal activity including arson.
Reduced marketability and value in neighbouring properties and the
wider area, encouraging homeowners to move away from the area
before their equity is eroded and thereby contributing to a spiral of
decline.
An empty property may pose a direct risk to adjoining properties through
structural defects, damp etc.
Wider multiplier effects, such as impacts on local businesses through
reduced demand for their goods and services and, in areas of low
demand, knock on effects on the viability of public services, such as
schools.

Page 4128

2.5

Whilst individual properties may not manifest all of these characteristics, if a
small group or cluster of properties becomes empty in an area, they can quickly
begin to establish a culture of under-investment and a spiral of decline as
confidence is lost.

2.6

At the same time as these properties lie empty, there is a pressing need for new
residential accommodation to address housing and homelessness need. The
most recent official projections estimate the need to accommodate 5,244,000
new households by 2037. Alongside this there are 77,240 families housed in
temporary accommodation (as at 31/3/2017) who also need a permanent home,
and the Homelessness Reduction Act 2016 will increase local authority statutory
homelessness duties further.

2.7

Regardless of the reasons why properties are empty, in all cases there is an
opportunity cost for the owner. Potential financial returns (i.e. rental income,
reduced Council Tax and VAT renovation rate) from bringing the property into
use, or disposing of it to others who would bring it back into use, are not
realised. There are holding costs incurred for empty property. Some of the
costs are real, such as Council Tax (up to 150%), maintenance, insurance and
security. Other costs are less visible and include a poor image and
reputation. Owning an empty property is not a no-cost option.

2.8

Under the Local Government Finance Act 2012, since 1 April 2013 local
authorities in England took on additional powers over certain council tax
discounts, exemptions and premiums. Council Tax is usually payable on an empty
home - the amount is determined at an authority’s discretion. “Unoccupied and
substantially unfurnished” properties may receive a discount of anything
between 0% and 100% of their Council Tax. Vacant properties undergoing
“major repair work” or “structural alteration” may receive a discount of between
0% and 100% for a maximum of 12 months. The amount of discount to be
offered to properties falling into these categories is entirely at the discretion of
the billing authority. Many authorities offer no discount for properties falling into
these categories. Others offer a short period of exemption (for instance, one
month) followed by full liability; or a short period of exemption, followed by a
longer period of discount, followed by full liability.

2.9

Local authorities have also been able to set an ‘empty homes premium’ for longterm empty properties. Properties which have been unoccupied and
substantially unfurnished for over two years may be charged up to 150% of the
normal Council Tax (unless it is an annex or the owner is in the Armed Forces).

2.10

Renovation and refurbishment work on existing homes is generally subject to
VAT while new-build housing is zero-rated. If work is carried out to an existing
building it will normally be subject to VAT at the standard rate. However, VAT
may be charged at a reduced rate of 5% if renovations or alterations are taking
place where:


an eligible dwelling that has not been lived in during the 2 years immediately
before work starts; or
5
Page
129



premises intended for use solely for a ‘relevant residential purpose’ that
have not been lived in during the 2 years immediately before work is
commenced. qualify for zero rated VAT a property must have been empty
for at least 10 years immediately before renovation work is started and it
must be used for residential purposes afterwards by the owner or their
family.

2.11

Local Authorities will also benefit from the reuse of empty property in their area.
This includes the provision of an improved quality and choice of housing,
increased income from Council Tax,Business Rates and New Home Bonus
and reduced expenditure, for example on environmental health measures and
homelessness temporary accommodation. Local Authorities now have clearly
defined duties to maintain and enhance the health of the housing market
across all tenures and can provide a range of guidance and support to owners.

2.12

From a local authority perspective, a key government policy in regard to empty
homes is the New Homes Bonus introduced in 2011. This policy recognises the
fact that empty homes returned to use provide additional accommodation in the
same way that new build properties do. An empty home returned to use and
occupied is rewarded in the same way as a new home delivered, via a payment
of the equivalent Council Tax income to the local authority for six financial years
following its return to use. This can generate an average of £9020 within the
Staffordshire Moorlands and £9875 within High Peak. New Homes Bonus not
only encourages local authorities to invest in empty property work to reduce the
number of empty homes, it also ensures that this investment remains and that
the problem of empty properties is contained. In the same way as a reduction in
the number of empty homes attracts a bonus and rewards local authorities, an
increase in the number of empty homes imposes a financial penalty, eating into
any New Homes Bonus that may be payable on new build properties.

2.13

Following consultation the following changes to NHB were announced. From
2017 a national baseline for housing growth will apply of 0.4%. Below this, the
NHB will not be paid. The aim of this change is to ensure that “the money is
used to reward additional housing rather than just normal growth”. The number
of years for which payments are made will be reduced from six to five years in
2017-18 and reduced further to four years from 2018-19. Despite these changes
it is very much in the interests of local authorities to not only reduce the number
of properties left empty but also to ensure the number remains as low as
possible.

2.14

The Coalition Government’s “Programme for Government” included a
commitment to “explore a range of measures to bring empty homes into use."
Funding was allocated between 2012 and 2015 under two rounds of the Empty
Homes Programme (part of the Affordable Homes Programme). Additional
funding was also allocated as part of the Clusters of Empty Homes Programme,
which aimed to tackle concentrations of poor quality empty homes in areas of
low housing demand.
The 2016 -2021 Shared Ownership Affordable Homes Programme can provide
funding to bring empty property back into use as affordable homes. The
Housing and Planning Minister (October 2015) made clear there are no plans to
6

Page 130

introduce separate or additional funding, previous funding was ‘intended to
provide a push in the right direction, we have no plans to provide more. The
Government has achieved a year on year reduction in long-term empty homes
and the number of homes that stand empty for more than six months is now at
its lowest level since records began.’
2.15

The Housing White Paper ‘Fixing our Broken Housing Market’ sets out how the
current government seeks to help people now and tackle some of the impacts
of the housing shortage. This is through encouraging local authorities to make
efficient use of existing stock and best use of homes that are long-term empty
through existing powers and incentives.

2.16

Where owners cannot be identified or are unwilling to bring a property back into
use, Local Authorities have a range of statutory enforcement powers (as
outlined in Section 9). There are clearly a range of benefits to be derived by
Local Authorities and owners from bringing empty property back into use.
However, little success can be yielded where Local Authorities and owners
work in isolation and close partnership working is essential. Empty homes have
a negative impact on the community and local authority. They represent a
wasted resource when left vacant, but if tackled can represent considerable
opportunity.

3

Reasons for Empty Properties

3.1

If a constructive approach to securing the reuse of empty property is to be
successful, it is important to understand why property is left empty for long
periods of time and the associated effects this can have on a community. The
reasons are numerous, some regional, others more area specific.

3.2

The factors that are driven by the national and sub-regional housing market
are as follows: 




3.3

low demand;
housing market collapse/repossession/abandonment - so severe that
households become trapped in negative equity or unable to manage
mortgage debt therefore repossession takes place and the lender
is unable to dispose of the asset;
over-supply of certain property types;
area regeneration - a property may be empty pending renovation
or demolition or a property could be awaiting planning consent.

There are certain general property related factors that contribute towards
properties remaining unused: 


A purchase may be purely a speculative option and capital
appreciation the only aim ‘buy to leave’.
Fear of letting the property – i.e. some owners may be fearful of the
perceived difficulties associated with managing a rented property and
prefer to leave the property empty until the market improves and
selling becomes a more attractive option.
7

Page 131






3.4

Property condition (owners are unable to afford the works
necessary to bring a property back into a habitable condition or due to
ill health or await or lack planning consent).
Repossession (empty whilst finace company place on the market).
Prohibition Orders made under the Housing Act 2004.
Awaiting demolition.

There are cases where individual circumstances force properties to remain
empty for long periods of time: 



Unresolved ownership: following death protracted delays may occur as
the property is going through probate or if the owner died intestate and
the legal title is in dispute.
Family disputes/divorce settlements – awaiting completion before
decision to reoccupy or place on market. bankruptcy of owner.
Owner hospitalised or in institutional care.

4

Local Context

4.1

The aims which the Councils’ Corporate Plans seek to address are: 




Help to create a safer and healthier encvironment for or residents to live
and work.
Meet finacial challenges and provide value for money.
Support economic development and regeneration.
Protect and improve the environment.

The Councils’ Housing Strategies recognise the authorities’ strategic and
enabling role in balancing the housing market and priorities including to:




Provide access to a range of housing options for those most in housing
need and make best use of stock.
Plan and develop new affordable housing that meets the needs of local
people.
Support people to access and stay in good quality housing.

The Councils recognise that effective and proactive management of empty
properties throughout their areas will contribute to addressing many of these
issues.
4.2

It must be recognised that the numbers of empty properties are continually
fluctuating as properties become empty and are re-occupied on a daily basis
and therefore data can only identified at a snapshot in time. As at 31.7.2017,
2.5% of domestic properties are empty within each of the Councils’ housing
market areas. A low proportion of properties are empty for a short, transitional
period of time (under 3 months), with the majority empty for six months or more
(53% in Staffordshire Moorlands and 64% in High Peak). A significant
proportion (25% Staffordshire Moorlands and 17% High Peak) are empty for
over 2 years and incur 150% Council Tax charge.

Page 8132

182
248

210
238

325
281

272
180

100
95

Total properties banded
for Council Tax purposes

Uninhabitable.
50% discount up to 12m

Over 2yrs
Empty & unfurnished.
150% Charge

6-24m
Empty & unfurnished
100% Charge

3-6m
Empty and unfurnished
100% Charge

0-3m
Empty amd unfurnished
100% Discount
SMDC
HPBC

43,899
41,552

Source: 31.7.2017 Alliance data

4.3

Within the Alliance areas empty properties are found within the private sector.
As at 1/4/2017 High Peak Borough Council owns 3989 properties, 39 properties
were vacant, representing less that 1% total stock. There is significant demand
for affordable housing with 1835 registered households seeking housing in High
Peak and 1101 seeking housing in the Staffordashire Moorlands. During
2016/17 103 households in High Peak and 61 households in Staffordshire
Moorlands were statutorily homeless.

4.4

National consultation has been undertaken in relation to the government
commitment to allow local authorities to retain 100% of business rates raised
locally. Within Staffordshire Moorlands 9.8% and in High Peak 7.6% of business
premises are empty for longer than six months.

SMDC
HPBC

0-3m

3-6m

Over 6m

23
20

19
25

295
270

Total Business
Premises for
business rate
purposes
3012
3552

Source: 31.7.2017 Alliance data

4.5

It is recognised that further improvement can always be made and the Council
has always sought to deal with empty properties pro-actively in proportion to
available resources and funding. In the current absence of targeted capital
funding, the Council will seek to undertake an assessment of empty properties
on a case by case basis following a complaint, to determine the immediate and
longer term impact of the property on its immediate neighbours and the wider
community in which it sits. The property is scored against a number of criteria
and assigned to a low, medium of high priority banding which determines the
action to be taken in each case.The Alliance Empty Homes webpages give the
public the opportunity to report an empty home and a review of available
information and assistance forms part of the Action Plan.
9
Page
133

SECTION B: OBJECTIVES AND BENEFITS OF STRATEGY
5

Strategic Objectives

5.1

The aims and objectives of the strategy are as follows: 









To bring empty private sector properties back into use to maximise housing
stock.
To raise awareness of empty property issues.
To minimise the number of properties that become long-term empties at
an early stage.
To create accurate information in relation to empty properties.
To promote the availability of information and services to empty property
owners and private landlords.
To provide sustainable development by reducing the need to build new
properties, therefore reducing the pressure to build in greenfield sites in
the open countryside.
To discourage anti-social behaviour, crime or fear of crime which can
occur when a building is empty.
To improve housing conditions, the vitality of the built environment and
prevent the deterioration of the buildings.

6

Benefits of the Strategy

6.1

The potential benefits to the Councils are as follows: 





6.2

Supports the Corporate Plans, corporate policies, objectives and
strategies.
Identifies and maximises funding streams and income opportunities,
including New Homes Bonus.
Provides additional good quality housing to meet housing and
homelessness need and reduces temporay accommodation expenditure.
Prevents empty properties becoming the focus of anti-social behaviour, fear
of crime and attracting adverse comment from the wider community.
Good for public relations as it gives greater visible evidence of the
Councils’ strategic policy and promotes the authority enabling role.

The potential benefits to empty property owners, including landlords
(housing associations and private landlords) are as follows: 




Effective advice and assistance to bring empty properties back into use.
Financial assistance in refurbishing the property preventing property
dilapidation.
Turn costly and expensive empty property into a valuable asset.
Possible access of a managing agent providing a comprehensive housing
management service for the period of a lease.

Page 10
134



Provision of support and legal advice on all aspects of letting in the private
rented sector.

SECTION C: OPTIONS TO DEAL WITH EMPTY PROPERTIES
7

Encouraging Owners to Reuse Empty Properties

7.1

Once the Local Authority has identified that a project is a priority for its
investment, the starting point should be to encourage the owner to bring it
back into use.

7.2

The first priority is to identify the owner of the property. Techniques to assist
in identifying the owner include the following: 






7.3

Working with other local authority colleagues - other services and Councils
may have previously attempted to contact the owner and may therefore be
able to provide contact details, subject to the legal restrictions regarding the
sharing of information by local authorities.
Writing to the property or attaching a leaflet or poster to it. The owner may
have mail redirected or they might call to the property on an intermittent
basis and make contact.
Contacting people or organisations in the local area, which may provide
alternative contact details to try. This can include a variety of people, such
as neighbours, neighbourhood watch coordinators, local community
groups, local shopkeepers, local councillors, and places of worship.
Contacting other public service organisations, such as local healthcare
providers.
Property ownership searches can be undertaken including search of the
electoral roll, land title searches or a Companies House search. Serving a
notice on people that are suspected to have details of the owner either
under Section 330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or under
Section 16 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

If the owner can be identified, they need to be made them aware of the
following: 




The problems being caused by the property, the basis on which the Council
is taking action and the minimum steps that the owner needs to take. The
costs that the owner may currently be incurring by holding an empty
property and the risks to them of doing nothing.
The assistance that the Council can provide in helping to bring empty
properties back into use. This can take a number of forms, including advice
and financial assistance.
The powers available to the Council if the owner does not take voluntary
steps to bring the property back into use. It is important to explain to the
owner the implication of legal action, including both losing their ownership
of the property and losing entitlement to any grants for which they may
have been eligible.

11
Page
135

7.4

Some owners may not wish to be tied to the conditions attached to financial
grant assistance e.g. rent obligations and may seek their own financial sources.

7.5

Once initial support has been provided, it is important to remain in touch with
the owner, or any third party to which the property has been sold. This helps
ensure that the property is successfully brought back into use and enables it
to be counted towards the Council’s targets as part of this strategy.

8

Funding to Bring Empty Properties Back Into Use

8.1

A variety of funding sources are used to secure the return of empty properties
back into use. Different options are available including:




8.2

The Housing Renewals Assistance Policy radically changes the way in
which funding may be provided by the local authorities enabling them to
bring a more strategic approach to private housing renewal. It gives
local authorities the power to offer grants and loans to owners to renovate
empty properties.
Commuted sums paid through Section 106 Agreements under the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990, although rarely used in this way, can also
be used to fund empty property work as long as they are in line with policy.
This generally means that the agreement must clearly provide a benefit to
the immediate locality.

Other more targeted funding also exists to encourage the re-use of empty
properties. Sources of funding include: 






The Homes and Communities Agency will provide funding through the 2016
to 2021 Shared Ownership Affordable Homes Programme to support the
purchase or lease of empty properties to bring them back into use as
affordable housing.
Architectural Heritage Fund will provide monies to help community
members set up Building Preservation Trusts aimed at restoring and reusing empty properties of architectural value.
Historic England run Partnership Schemes in Conservation Areas. If an
empty property is in a conservation area this scheme will match-fund a
local authority contribution for restoration projects. They do not normally
grant aid internal works however.
Historic England would also consider to repair and restore Grade I and II*
listed buildings. This could include internal works as well as external.

The Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) has a range of schemes:


Townscape Heritage – this is similar to the Historic England Partnership
Schemes in Conservation Areas programme but can involve far larger
budgets and specifically includes internal works to bring empty buildings or
empty upper floors to buildings back into use (must be in a Conservation
Area).

Page 12
136









Heritage Grants – HLF’s equivalent of Historic England’s listed building
grants but can also include Grade II listed buildings or key building at risk in
a Conservation Area.
Heritage Enterprise grants – similar to Heritage Grants but focuses on
industrial/commercial buildings. HLF would enter into partnership with a notfor-profit organisation taking a lease (minimum 10 years) on a vacant
building to restore it and bring it back into use.
Reduced VAT rates are applicable for refurbishment of properties empty for
a certain length of time; those empty for more than two years attract a
reduced rate of 5% while those empty for more than ten years do not
attract any VAT at all on refurbishment costs.
Alliance wide Landlord Accreditation Scheme offers grant assistance of up
to £2,000 to improve property standards, energy efficiency, security and fire
safety.
The business funding pages on the Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak
websites contain a dynamic list of business funding opportunities.

9

Taking Action against Owners of Empty Property

9.1

In some cases, it may not be straightforward to bring empty properties
back into use. Examples of the circumstances where bringing the property back
into use is difficult include the following: 




It may not be possible to identify the owner.
The owner may not be willing to bring the property back into use. For
example, if they are holding on to the property for speculative gain.
There may be several parties with an interest in the property and it is not
possible to reach agreement with all of them.
The owner may say that they will take steps to bring the property back into
use but may do nothing in practice.

9.2

In these cases there are a number of enforcement actions that the Council
could take. Initially, however, the owner should be warned if contact details
are available for them. Even if they have not previously made contact it is
essential to issue warnings to demonstrate that reasonable efforts have been
made before resorting to legal action.

9.3

If these warnings are not acted on, there are two main enforcement routes
available to the Council: 



The Council may be able to use its legal powers to secure
improvements to the property or to undertake the works in default where
the owner does not respond. This is a good course of action where
urgent works are needed to the property.
If the property is targeted for being brought back into use for other
reasons, such as bringing a number of properties into a single
ownership or to address an acute local housing need, then the Council
could use its Compulsory Purchase powers.
13
Page
137

9.4

9.5

There are numerous general legal powers that the Council can resort to in
relation to improving the condition of a property in order to broker its reuse. The
general enforcement powers are set out in the following table: -

The following additional powers are designed to secure occupation of empty
properties. However, these can be time consuming and costly, particularly if
opposed. The Council’s approach must be fair, equitable and incremental.
Both before and during progressing one of the following procedures, owners
will be fully advised and given an opportunity and sufficient time to take
measures of their own to bring properties back into use. If whilst preparing for
enforcement action the owner decides to take voluntary action to bring the
property back into use this will be the preferred route providing significant costs
have not been incurred. In some cases it may be decided that even though the
owner is unwilling to consider bringing their property back into use voluntarily,
there is insufficient reason to pursue enforcement action.

Page 14
138

Enforced Sale: - Law of Property Act 1925
Where works are completed in default by the Council the owner will be liable to
pay the Council for the work and for any additional relevant costs incurred by
the Council. The Council will ensure that the money is recovered and as part
of the recovery procedure may place a Charge on the property to ensure that the
money is recovered when the property is sold. Where monies remain unpaid, the
Council may force the sale of the property. This may also apply where there is
unpaid Council tax charges in respect of the property.
Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMOs): - Housing Act 2004
Empty Dwelling Management Orders are a discretionary power introduced in the
Housing Act 2004 that came into force in April 2006. They allow Local Authorities
to take management control of certain empty properties for initially up to 1 year
(under an interim EDMO) and then for 7 years (under a final EDMO). Under an
interim EDMO the authority can only grant tenancies with the permission of the
owner but under a final EDMO the owner’s consent is not required. The local
authority must apply to the Residential Property Tribunal (RPT) for an EDMO.
The Tribunal must be satisfied that there is no reasonable prospect the dwelling
will be reoccupied in the near future without the imposition of the EDMO. The
RPT will take into account the interests of the community, and the effect that the
order will have on the rights of the relevant proprietor and may have on the rights
of third parties. The local authority may be required to pay compensation.
Certain dwellings are exempt from EDMOs, these include dwellings undergoing
repair or where planning permission is awaited, where the owner is temporarily
resident elsewhere, holiday homes, dwellings occupied by the owner or their
guests on a temporary basis and dwellings for sale or where the owner has
died.
The Housing (Empty Dwelling Management Orders) (Prescribed Period of Time
and Additional Prescribed Requirements) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012 (SI
2012/2625), which came into force on 15 November 2012, increased the period
for which a property needs to have been empty before an EDMO can be applied
for from six months to two years. The Order also provides that an authority must
give the owner at least three months’ notice of the intention to apply for an order.
Compulsory Purchase: - Housing Act 1985 Section 17
Local Authorities have the power to acquire land and property compulsorily where
the owner is not willing to sell by agreement. This applies to underused or
ineffectively used property/land for housing purposes if there is housing need in
the area. Compulsory purchase can be approved where the acquisition will allow
improvements or redevelopment to take place, providing that the
improvement/redevelopment contributes to the promotion of economic, social or
environmental well being. These Orders have to be approved by the Government
Office and may be subject to public enquiry. Compulsory purchase is a potentially
costly and time-consuming process and should only be used as a last resort
where attempts at encouragement have failed and where other enforcement
actions are not seen to be viable.
15
Page
139

Compulsory Purchase has the added benefit that it generally guarantees that the
property is brought back into use, where the use of the Local Authority’s legal
powers may only result in urgent problems being addressed. The disadvantage of
Compulsory Purchase is the time involved, which, even if an appeal is not
involved, compulsory purchase of a property could take between 20-24 months
SECTION D: PROPOSED ACTION
10

Empty Property Strategy Action Plan

10.1

In developing the actions necessary to implement the strategy and achieve
the objectives set out in Section B above, it is important to recognise that a
number of actions have to be undertaken to gain a more comprehensive
understanding of the current situation with regard to empty properties within the
Councils’ areas.

10.2

The actions that are proposed to provide this improved knowledge base are
as follows: 





10.3

Continue with a cross service working group to co-ordinate
implementation of the strategy and action plan.
Maintain a detailed database of empty properties containing details of
the reasons for vacancy. Establishment of business processes to keep
database up to date.
Undertake surveys to evaluate reasons for properties remaining empty
Establishment of a reporting system that quantifies the number of empty
properties and action taken to deal with them.
Evaluate funding models available to bring empty property into use.

Although more specific actions relating to targeting specific properties or
groups of properties will have to wait until the actions proposed in section 10.2
above are complete, there are a number of direct actions that can be
completed. These are as follows: 


Review of Council Tax Discounts and Exemptions Policy and information
provision in the context of empty properties.
Evaluate current measures and enforcement measures within the
Housing Renewal Assistance policy for dealing with empty properties.

SECTION E: MONITORING AND REVIEW
11

Consultation

11.1

Communication of the planned actions in relation to the Empty Property
Strategy is essential. Partners of the Councils will need to be engaged in
delivery solutions. The consultation actions that are proposed are as follows: -

Page 16
140





Undertake initial publicity of the strategy and share with key
stakeholders and highlight the importance of bringing empty properties
back into use.
Share empty property information with private landlords.
Redevelop webpage advice and develop an information toolkit.

11.2

These actions are included in the Implementation Plan detailed at Annex 1.

12

Performance Monitoring and Review

12.1

The purpose of this strategy is to explain the current situation with regard to
empty homes both on a national and local basis and to set out the Council’s
future plans. It is essential that the effectiveness of action delivered by the
implementation of the strategy is closely monitored and reviewed. In order
to develop a good system of performance management it is proposed to
undertake the following actions: 



12.2

Monitor the number of empty homes back into use.
Develop up to date knowledge of best practice through research and
liason.
Monitor and review delivery of actions within the Implementation Plan.

It is proposed to review and update the Implementation Plan on a quarterly
basis.

17
Page
141

ANNEX 1
EmptyPropertyStrategy
ImplementationPlan
Section A
Understanding the Current Position
Action

Outcome

Timescale

Responsibility

Page 142

Refresh cross service working group to co- Corporate ownership of empty property
ordinate implementation of the strategy.
issue.

Complete

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and
Monitoring Officer

Complete collation of empty homes Comprehensive data base of long term
information from sources including Council empty properties established.
Tax.

Dec 2017

Joanne Wheeldon Principal Income Officer
Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing, Public
Health and Licensing)

Dec 2017

Joanne Wheeldon Principal Income Officer
Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical
Officer
Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing, Public
Health and Licensing)

Map empty property and complaints
information on Geographical Information
System.

Identification of any ‘hot-spots’ of empty
properties.

Maintain register of problem properties Identification of r e a s o n s f o r v a c a n c y
categorised as requiring action.
a n d actions to mitigate effect of difficult
properties.

18

Jan 2018

Action

Outcome

Timescale

Undertake an assessment of the number of Assessment of the sustainability of ‘right to
‘Right to Buy’ vacancies.
buy’ tenure.
Undertake a questionnaire survey of all
owners of empty properties within
Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak.

Page 143

Review funding models available to bring
empty property into use. To include
renovation grant aid, private sector leasing
scheme partner, and a Tenancy
Management Service using High Peak
repairs team to survey/repair.

Dec 2017

Analysis of responses will identify why
properties remain empty and understand
what action/advice each owner requires to
bring the property back into use.

Jan 2018

Identification of funding models to develop
scheme/s that will bring empty properties into
use, generate NHB income and address
housing need and statutory homelessness
duties.

Feb 2018

Responsibility

Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical Officer
Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing, Public
Health and Licensing)
Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical Officer
Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical Officer

Section B
Communication
Action

Outcomes

Undertake initial publicity of the strategy and
share with key stakeholders. Undertake a
publicity campaign to highlight the
importance of bringing empty properties
back into use and available funding.

Members of the public and property owners
will be informed about the consequences of
leaving properties empty and what options
are available to help bring them back into
use

19

Timescale

Nov2017

Responsibility

Carolyn Robinson Communication
Business Partner

Page 144

Redevelop Empty Homes pages on the
web-site offering advice and information
toolkit.

Provide an increase in access channels to
deal with empty property queries and
vulnerable owners better able to address
empty properties.

Feb 2018 &
ongoing basis

Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing,
Public Health and
Licensing)
Emma Thurlby Website Development
and Social Media Officer

Share empty property information with
private landlords through the Landlord
Accreditation Scheme, Landlords
Association and with individual landlords.

Information provided about the
consequences of leaving properties empty
and what options are available to help
bring them back into use Increase in the
number of properties available for
households in housing needs.

Ongoing basis

Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing, Public
Health and Licensing)

Section C
Targeted Action
Action

Outcomes

Timescale

Responsibility

Evaluate current enforcement options and Increased focus on effective enforcement.
further develop enforcement protocol for Priority homes brought into use through use
dealing with empty properties.
of enforcement action.

Mar 2018

Mike Towers Senior Officer (Housing, Public
Health and Licensing)

Identify funding and business
proposal for dealing with empty
properties.

Mar 2018

Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical
Officer

Identification of funding programme for
empty properties. Increased certainty of
investment for stakeholders.

20

Run forecasting review tool to analyse data Identification of occupied properties and
to identify homes that are occupied prior to increased NHB income generation.
October to inform NHB allocation.

Review of information provided at time of Owners (including vulnerable owners) made
Council Tax Discounts and Exemptions aware of advice and support on offer as
Policy in context of empty properties.
early as possible and fewer empty
properties.

Review of Council Tax Discounts and
Exemptions Policy in context of empty
properties.

Page 145

Development of a plan that identifies
specific properties that can be targeted for
action.

Identification of Alliance income generation
and encourage use of empty properties.

Local community issues can be addressed
and successful outcomes advertised.

By Oct each
year, annually

Joanne Wheeldon Principal Income Officer

Feb 2018
&
ongoing
basis

Joanne Wheeldon Principal Income Officer

March 2018

Joanne Wheeldon Principal Income Officer

March
2018

Cross service working group

Section D
Reporting and Monitoring
Action

Outcomes

Monitor the number of empty homes brought Monitoring and strategic direction is
maintained across strategy.
back into use.

21

Timescale

Jan 2018

Responsibility

Cross service working group

Develop up-to-date knowledge of best
Strategic direction is maintained across
practice through ongoing research and liaison. strategy.

Monitor and review delivery of actions within
the Impementation Plan on a quarterly
basis.

Monitoring and strategic direction is
maintained across strategy.

Page 146
22

Ongoing basis

Michelle Costello Housing Strategy Technical Officer

Quarterly

Cross service working group

Page 147

0

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
7th December 2017
TITLE:

Housing Revenue Account - Long-term
Vacant Properties

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Operational Services
Julie McCabe – Executive Councillor for
Housing & Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Paul Hare – Assets Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
None

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to consider the future use of a number of longterm vacant Housing Revenue Account (HRA) properties.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Executive:


Approve the refurbishment and subsequent re-letting of the following
properties:
o 23 Torr Top Street, New Mills; and
o 127 Padfield Main Road, Padfield



Approve the disposal of the following properties:
o 17 Meal Street & 26 Church View, New Mills

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

A number of HRA properties had been identified as being in a poor state of
repair and without significant investment were unable to be made available for
new tenants. These properties have been vacant for a significant length of
time. The properties are:

Page 149





Torr Top Street (see plan attached at Appendix A)
127 Padfield Main Road (see plan attached at Appendix B)
17 Meal Street / 26 Church View /32 High Street, New Mills (see plan
attached at Appendix C)

3.2

The estimated cost of the improvements to bring the properties up to decent
homes standard is £176,000.

3.3

A financial evaluation has been undertaken which takes into predicted cash
flows over a 30-year period consistent with the timeframe of the HRA business
plan. These cash flows have then been discounted to calculate if and how the
proposals would contribute to the HRA business plan, in terms of:




The net contribution over the 30 year period, expressed at current values
(Net Present Value)
The point at which they would begin to make a net positive contribution to
the HRA (Payback Period)
No allowance has been made for the management as it is assumed that
the four additional properties could be managed within the exiting
resources

3.4

A number of scenarios have been worked through including an assessment of
the sensitivity of the forecasts. The conclusion of the analysis is that the
refurbishment of the properties would result in a positive contribution to the
HRA Business Plan with the payback being within the 30-year period. This
financial assessment is based solely on rental income and property costs.

3.5

The housing management team have reviewed the subject properties on their
suitability for re-letting purposes. The conclusion of this review is that the Torr
Top Street and Padfield Main Road properties would present no difficulties in
letting. Based on this assessment the HRA Business Plan Working Group,
which considered this report on 1st November, concluded that the Council
should retain and refurbish these two properties. The group agreed that given
the complexities associated with the layout of the properties at Meal Street
and Church View, New Mills and the potential difficulties it letting the
properties that disposal should be explored.

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Providing a fit for purpose housing stock that meets the need of tenants is a
Council priority.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

The options that have been considered are as follows:


Refurbishment of the properties and retention in the Council’s housing
stock;

Page 150




Transfer of the properties to another social housing provider;
Sale of the properties

5.2

These are evaluated in the report

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The refurbishment of the two properties as recommended in the report
will incur a cost of £102,000. This will be met from the HRA Capital
Programme. It is anticipated that the sale proceeds from the other two
properties will result in a capital receipt which will partially offset this cost.

6.5

Legal
The use of receipts arising from the disposal of council housing assets is
covered by the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) Regulations 2003 (as amended). Receipts from sales of vacant
land, disposals of vacant properties at market value and disposals of
vacant stock at a discount to non-secure tenants can be retained,
provided that they are spent on affordable housing, regeneration or the
paying off of HRA debt.

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
Sensitivity analysis has been undertaken as part of the evaluation in the
report

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Page 151

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Buxton Town Hall

Paul Hare
Assets Manager

Page 152

7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

Following the vacation by former Council tenants, a number of properties had
been identified as being in a poor state of repair and without significant
investment were unable to be made available for new tenants. These
properties have been vacant for a significant length of time.

7.2

In order to identify the future options for these properties, their condition and
the cost of refurbishment has been investigated in some detail. Their suitability
for potential future tenancies has also been assessed.

7.3

This report details the outcome of these assessments and recommends a way
forward.

8

Description of the Properties
23 Torr Top Street (see plan attached at Appendix A)

8.1

The property is a stone built end of terrace house arranged over three levels
and located within the New Mills Conservation Area. The accommodation
comprises a lounge entered directly from Torr Top Street, dining area and
adjoining kitchen. Upstairs there is a large double and a single bedroom
together with bathroom and WC. There is another staircase from the dining
area to the lower ground floor with utility space and large basement. This also
provides external access onto St Alban Street.

8.2

There is a very small entrance yard at the front of the building but no other
external space. Car parking is restricted in the area. The building is suffering
from woodworm to floor joists and floorboards to the ground floor with other
damp and rotten.

8.3

Until 2014, the property had been occupied. A new central heating system
was installed in 2010 and there have historic roof leaks and issues with the
soil pipe and rainwater goods.

8.4

In addition the property configuration may have to be altered to improve the
bathroom but this will result in the loss of a small bedroom.
127 Padfield Main Road (see plan attached at Appendix B)

8.5

This property is a stone built semi-detached house on two floors with
externally accessed cellar to the rear. It has an unusual configuration on the
ground floor with non-building regulation compliant access to the two first floor
bedrooms. There is a small open area to the rear, but no garage or garden
space.

8.6

Although structurally sound, the building is not habitable requiring complete
overhaul to replace rotting timbers, electrics and heating, relocation of
staircase, new bathroom and kitchen, replastering of walls and ceilings
together with full redecoration.

Page 153

8.7

There is evidence of saturation of the roof timbers and evidence of timber
infestation which will require further surveys.

8.8

Until December 2014, the property was occupied. A new central heating
system was installed in August 2014.
17 Meal Street / 26 Church View /32 High Street, New Mills (see plan attached
at Appendix C)

8.8

These three properties are unusual in that they comprise five storeys with
three separate addresses and accesses.

8.9

17 Meal Street is on the ground floor over two floors and this property is
located below ground level on one side.

8.10

Above this and accessed just below street level is a single storey property 26
Church View.

8.11

On the top two floors is the property 32 High Street which has been sold on a
long lease and which the council retains the responsibility for the roof and
external repairs which can be recovered as a recharge.

8.12

Meal Street has been empty for ten years and as well as total refurbishment, it
requires damp proofing.

8.13

Church View sits above Meal Street and was vacated by the last tenant in
November 2015. 32 High Street was purchased on a long lease by the tenant
under the right to buy in 1988; although the Council retains the freehold (the
tenant of 32 High Street pays a £10 annual ground rent).

8.14

Whilst there are three separate dwellings, the building construction is vertically
integrated and includes an external maintenance liability to the freeholder. In
these circumstances, sale of the individual units would not be practical and
disposal as a single lot would be a more marketable proposition offering
greater flexibility to any purchaser.

8.15

Meal Street is now virtually a shell and has severe damp problems both at
floor level and throughout its full height due to the fact that it is set into the
hillside.

8.16

The leaseholder of High Street has been made aware that the Council may be
considering a sale, but that any sale of the Council’s interest would be subject
to his lease which would not be affected. However the presence of the
leaseholder will have a negative impact on the sale value of the properties.

9

Available Options

9.1

The options available are as follows:

Page 154





Refurbishment of the properties and retention in the Council’s housing
stock;
Transfer of the properties to another social housing provider;
Sale of the properties

10

Refurbishment of the Properties

10.1

The properties identified are in a poor state of repair and have been assessed
in terms of costs and suitability in order to determine future options.

10.2

The estimated costs for the improvements to bring the properties up to decent
homes standard are as follows:
Property

23 Torr Top Street
127 Padfield Main Road
26 Church View/32 High Street/17 Meal Street

Refurbishment
Costs
£
50,600
51,400
74,000
176,000

Total Refurbishment Cost

10.3

The costs for on-going decent homes investment over the course of the next
thirty years have been included in a financial evaluation. The calculation does
not include any contribution to the HRA running costs.

10.4

The financial evaluation takes predicted cash flows over a 30-year period
consistent with the timeframe of the HRA business plan. To match these
2017/18 price based cash flows to the 30-year time line inflation factors have
been applied. The resultant cash flows have then been discounted to calculate
if and how the proposals would contribute to the HRA business plan, in terms
of:




10.5

The net contribution over the 30 year period, expressed at current values
(Net Present Value)
the point at which they would begin to make a net positive contribution to
the HRA (Payback Period)
No allowance has been made for the management as it is assumed that
the four additional properties could be managed within the exiting
resources

A number of scenarios have been worked through the model the outcomes
are shown in the table below:

Page 155

Sensitivity (Risk)
High

Standard
(Predicted)
Rent Increases
Maintenance p/w
Interest / Inflation

3%
£10
3.5%

1%
£20
6%

3%
£10
1%

22
22
22

>30
>30
>30

16
16
16

19,000
23,390
37,960

(21,870)
(18,910)
(42,330)

62,930
69,710
123,760

Payback period (years)
23 Torr Top Street
127 Padfield Main Road
Flat Block
Business Plan life contribution (£)
23 Torr Top Street
127 Padfield Main Road
Flat Block

10.6

Low

The sensitivity of the forecasts from the key changes in assumptions is shown
in the table below:
If annual rent increase reduced by 1 percentage point.

23 Torr Top Street
127 Padfield Main Road
Flat Block

payback period
+ 3 years
+ 3 years
+ 3 years

If annual inflation increased by 1 percentage point.
23 Torr Top Street
+ 4 years
127 Padfield Main Road
+ 3 years
Flat Block
+ 4 years

lifetime
contribution (£)
(10,140)
(10,680)
(19,950)

(12,040)
(12,700)
(23,460)

10.7

This financial assessment is based solely on rental income and property costs.

10.8

The housing management team have reviewed the subject properties on their
suitability for re-letting purposes:
23 Torr Top Street, New Mills - Once refurbished this property would be highly
lettable. It is suggested that the existing bathroom is swapped for the smaller
bedroom as part of these works and then the property will will have 2 double
bedrooms.

Page 156

17 Meal Street, New Mills & 26 Church View, New Mills - If these properties
were able to be brought up to the required standard they could be let to
couples as they’d be attracted by the additional bedrooms and both are right in
the middle of New Mills and not obviously social dwellings. However they
would not be the easiest of properties to let.
127 Padfield Main Road, Padfield – This property is a large 3 bedroomed
house in a very desirable village and there are only 3 or 4 social housing
dwellings in the whole place. Given the size and location it is anticipated that
there would be no difficulties in letting it.

11

Transfer to an Alternative Provider

11.1

Social housing providers have been approached about these properties via
the Council’s Regeneration Officer. There appears to be no appetite to take on
these properties.

12

Sale of the Properties

12.1

The potential for sale has not been explored in any detail at this stage until the
potential for refurbishment and re-letting has been considered.

12.2

If the properties were to be disposed of, there would potentially be a capital
receipt that could contribute towards providing a new housing provision. The
use of receipts arising from the disposal of council housing assets is covered
by the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
Regulations 2003 (as amended). Receipts from sales of vacant land,
disposals of vacant properties at market value and disposals of vacant stock
at a discount to non-secure tenants can be retained, provided that they are
spent on affordable housing, regeneration or the paying off of HRA debt.

4 Recommendation by the HRA Business Plan Working Group
4.5 The HRA Business Plan Working Group’s considered this report at its meeting on the
1st November. The view of the group was that the Council should retain the
following two properties:



23 Torr Top Street, New Mills; and
127 Padfield Main Road, Padfield

4.6 The group agreed that given the complexities associated with the layout of the
properties at Meal Street and Church View, New Mills and the potential difficulties
it letting the properties, that disposal should be explored.

Page 157

APPENDIX A

Page 158

APPENDIX B

Page 159

APPENDIX C

Page 160

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 161

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 163

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 177

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

